
Date Published:18 January 2022     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Wednesday 26 January 2022 at 2.00 pm

Virtual Meeting - Web ex meeting

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Cllr Tony Dale

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 14)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2021. 

Cllr Tony Dale

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests by members.

Cllr Tony Dale

INFORMATION REPORTS

4  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

To receive an update on the work of the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee. 

Cllr Matt 
Babbage

5  GEGJC GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 15 - 16)

To consider proposals on the future governance arrangements of the 
GEGJC. 

Mike Dawson

6  EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS (Pages 17 - 100)

To consider the Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Strategy. 

Pete Carr

7  GCC COVID-19 ECONOMIC DASHBOARD (Pages 101 - 124)

To receive an update on Gloucestershire County Council (GCC)’s Covid-
19 Economic Dashboard. 

Colin Chick



    

8  GFIRST LEP UPDATE (Pages 125 - 132)

To receive an update on the work of the GFirst LEP. 

Dev 
Chakraborty

WORK PLAN

9  FORWARD (WORK) PLAN (Pages 133 - 134)

To note the Committee work plan and consider items for discussion at 
future meetings, including emerging SEDF proposals. 

Cllr Tony Dale

10  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of meetings for 2022 (all meetings to start at 10am):  

16 March 2022. 

Cllr Tony Dale

Membership –  Cllr Philip Robinson (Vice-Chair) Cllr Rowena Hay, Cllr Rob Bird, Cllr Richard 
Cook, Cllr Doina Cornell, Cllr Tony Dale (Chair) and Cllr Bernie O'Neill
Dev Chakraborty

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Wednesday 17 November 2021 commencing at 10.00 am at the Gloucester 
City Council Chamber.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Rowena Hay
Cllr Richard Cook
Cllr Doina Cornell
Cllr Tony Dale (Chair)

Dev Chakraborty
Cllr Bernie O'Neill
Cllr Philip Robinson (Vice-Chair)

Substitutes:

Apologies:

Officers in 
attendance: 

Cllr Rob Bird

Mike Dawson (TBC) Jon McGinty (Glos City)
Sandra Ford (TBC) Peter Williams (FODDC)
Colin Chick (GCC)             Pete Carr (GFirst LEP)
Simon Excell (GCC) Paul James (CDC)
Angela Presdee (GCC) James Brain (CDC)
Gillian Parkinson (GCC) Gareth Edmundson (CBC)
Katherine Martin (GCC)   Andrew Cummings (SDC)
Laura Powick (GCC) Kathy O’Leary (SDC)
      

308. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Rob Bird (Tewkesbury Borough Council). 

309. MINUTES 

Subject to amending the following, the minutes of the meeting held on 15 
September 2021 were agreed as a correct record:

 Cllr Victoria Atherstone to be removed from the list of attendees to be 
replaced by Cllr Catherine Braun; and

 In the second paragraph under the Forward (Work) Plan item, the sentence 
to be changed to: ‘An SEDF funding request to investigate options to better 
connect Kemble Train Station with Cirencester Town Centre would also be 
received at the next meeting.’

Mike Dawson, Chair of the GEGJC Senior Officer Group (SOG) provided an update 
on GEGJC governance review discussions by Leadership Gloucestershire. It was 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

understood that Leadership Gloucestershire had agreed to await the publication of 
the devolution white paper by Government, which was expected to be published by 
the end of 2021, before discussing and making a decision on the future of the 
GEGJC at its next meeting in January 2022. 

The Committee would receive an update on the outcome of these discussions at an 
additional GEGJC meeting which was being organised for January 2022. 

310. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

311. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Cllr Matt Babbage, Chair of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee (GEGSC), provided the Committee with an update on the activities of 
the GEGSC. 

Members noted that at its meeting in September, the GEGSC had discussed the 
future of the high street; in October a meeting had been held jointly with the 
Environment Scrutiny Committee at Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) to 
consider GCC’s Local Transport Plan Review; and at its meeting this afternoon, the 
GEGSC would be looking into modern methods of construction. 

A report detailing the GEGSC’s consideration of the future of the high street would 
be presented to the GEGJC in due course. 

312. EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS 

Pete Carr, Director of Employment and Skills, GFirst LEP, provided the Committee 
with an update on the skills landscape and emerging policy changes; the 
Gloucestershire Skills Strategy; the upskilling and employment of local people in 
Gloucestershire; and on the shortage of delivery/HGV drivers in the County. 

Firstly, an overview of the skills landscape and policy changes was presented. 
Members were advised that the DfE Skills for Jobs White Paper placed employers 
at the heart of the skills system. Additionally, Gloucestershire had been included as 
one of the pilot areas for the Local Skills Improvement Plan following a successful 
bid by Business West, with a focus on health and social care, and advanced 
engineering and manufacturing. The LEP would be working closely with Business 
West to learn lessons from this pilot. 

Members noted that Education Recovery Funding was still a priority to support the 
provision of education to those that had missed out as a result of the pandemic. 
Members also noted the Lifetime Skills Guarantee which offered free qualifications 
to adults that had not already achieved a Level 3 qualification, as well as the 
Multiply scheme which aimed to improve numeracy in adults. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

In an update on green skills, the Committee was advised that training providers 
were frustrated over a lack of translation for related courses and qualifications. 
Regarding digital skills, GFirst LEP was working with two consortia of training 
providers and digital skills boot camps were now available in the County.

Secondly, the Committee was informed of efforts to upskill and employ people 
locally. In particular, the Skills Portal provided information in one place on careers 
and local training providers. The Careers Hub was also working with local schools 
and alternative provision settings to help improve their careers provision. It was also 
noted that the Careers Coach tool was getting good traction as it was linked to live 
job vacancies in Gloucestershire, and work was continuing to progress the joint 
GCC and GFirst LEP Employment and Skills Hub. 

Thirdly, members were updated on the shortage of HGV drivers in the County. It 
was understood that the testing centre in Gloucester had closed, with the nearest 
testing centres being in Swindon and Bristol, and that a number of training 
providers had pulled out of the market in the County as their costs were not viable. 
The LEP was working with existing training providers to bid for additional contracts, 
and the lack of a testing centre in the County had been flagged with the DVLA.

Finally, members were updated on the Gloucestershire Skills Strategy. Members 
were advised that a working draft of the strategy and action plan would be reviewed 
by members of the Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Panel (GSAP) in December for 
feedback before further editing and its final publication at the end of January 2022. 

It was requested that the Gloucestershire Skills Strategy be added to the agenda 
for the additional GEGJC meeting in January for the Committee’s consideration. 

Following a further request, a paper detailing additional data relating to the 
effectiveness of the careers support on offer would be provided to the Committee.  

One member queried whether the introduction of mandatory Covid-19 vaccinations 
for front-line health and social care workers would be an issue for the sector? In 
response it was noted that this could be an issue.

Another member asked whether the Committee could look into why South 
Gloucestershire and Stroud College had been unsuccessful in their bid for a Green 
Skills Centre, as well as into how the County could support such bids going forward. 
It was suggested that a separate offline meeting be arranged to discuss this issue. 

There was a further query as to what could be done to promote and support 
students, employers and colleges with T Levels in the County. It was agreed that 
this issue would also be picked up offline. 

313. REVIEW OF GLOUCESTERSHIRE COVID-19 ECONOMIC RECOVERY PLANS 

Colin Chick, Executive Director for Economy, Environment and Infrastructure, GCC, 
provided the Committee with an update on GCC’s Covid-19 Economic Recovery 
Plan.

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

The Committee was informed that there had been three successful bids under the 
Levelling Up Fund in Gloucestershire which included investment for Gloucester City 
Centre; the Gloucester Docks Sustainable Travel Improvements; and levelling up 
the Future of the Forest. It was also understood that Gloucestershire had been 
shortlisted as one of five sites within the STEP Fusion project at Berkeley and 
Oldbury.

An update was provided on the role of libraries as outreach areas for the 
Employment and Skills Hub and in supporting local businesses and education. The 
Gloucester Innovation Lab was now up and running with a lab technician in place.

Members were informed that the Employment and Skills Hub had supported 24 
people in its first month of opening, and 12 people in the first week of November. 
The Hub was located in the same building as adult education which provided links 
to training opportunities. The next stage was to explore the development of a 
coordinator role to work with the Hub on bringing skills and employment 
opportunities to local people. 

Members were advised that social value was being embedded as part of the 
economic recovery process at GCC, and two workshops had been held in 
November with officers to gain an understanding of the ambitions and outcomes of 
social value as well as the starting point for the Council.

Finally members were updated on the Build Back Better Market Towns Fund, noting 
that 45 bids for funding were supported which resulted in £385,386 of the £500,000 
allocated. A second round of bids to allow more projects to apply for the remaining 
funding would be launched by the end of 2021. 

District council representatives were invited to provide the Committee with an
update on the work being carried out in their areas to promote and support
economic recovery.

Forest of Dean District Council
- Free training sessions had been provided on health and safety, food hygiene 

and Covid-19 safety to ensure local businesses were resilient throughout 
winter. 

- A new directory had been established for remote workers detailing facilities 
that could be used for people to work away from home.

- A promotional Christmas campaign was being developed with So Glos.
- The Council had been successful with their Levelling Up Bid which would 

include developing a satellite campus site in partnership with Hartpury 
College at Berry Hill.

- The Council had been successfully providing start up grants for small 
businesses.

Cotswold District Council
- The ZeroAvia project was generating media attention and attracting other 

companies to the local area.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

- Cirencester College had been successful in receiving funding from the T-
Level Capital Fund, and the new Applied Digital Skills Centre would open 
early in the new year.

- An analysis of footfall in local town centres revealed that the majority were 
bouncing back above the national average. 

- The Council was working with town centres on various projects funded 
through the Welcome Back Fund and on promoting Christmas activities.

- Farm 491, based at the Royal Agricultural University, was working to support 
agri-tech and agri-food entrepreneurs to develop successful businesses. 

Gloucester City Council
- The Economic Recovery Task Force had been focusing on the city centre to 

develop jobs and support small businesses.
- £20m of Levelling Up Funding had been received to help fund the 

redevelopment of the city centre.
- There had been a move to more sustainable placements as part of the 

housing recovery.
- A climate change manager had been appointed at the Council.
- There had been a number of successful events in Gloucester despite the 

impact of Covid this year, such as Gloucester Goes Retro. 

Stroud District Council
- A new council plan had been adopted last month focusing on supporting a 

thriving economy, communities and housing and climate change priorities.
- The Council was continuing to work with town councils and small businesses 

by providing free training and support for safe work places over winter. 
- A tourism officer post was being developed to support market towns.
- A consultation with businesses and stakeholders had been completed as 

part of work to develop a 10 year economic development strategy.
- There had been lots of interest by potential developers for the Brimscombe 

Port regeneration project.
- A social value portal had been developed to demonstrate what social value 

had been added by key projects.
- Council offices would now be heated using the river next door rather than 

gas, in order to reduce carbon emissions. 
- The Council had also been successful in its bid to the Restoring Your 

Railway Fund to develop a new railway station at Stonehouse. 

Cheltenham Borough Council
- The Economic Recovery Task Force had been working on a number of 

activities with a number of sub-groups over the past 18 months, and had 
been extended but with removal of the word ‘recovery’ to focus on economic 
regeneration. 

- Work to address the challenges facing the high street was on going. 
- The skills group had been working with key stakeholders and the DWP on 

data, and had launched an apprenticeship survey focused on construction 
and green skills.

- The hospitality group had been working on 4 main work streams including 
how hospitality could engage with the sustainability agenda.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

- The Cheltenham Christmas market and ice rink would be opening tomorrow. 

Tewkesbury Borough Council
- The recovery plan which had been established earlier this year had been 

reviewed by scrutiny, and would be rolled into the Council Plan refresh next 
year.

- Work continued through the Growth Hub to support local businesses. 
- The Tewkesbury High Street Heritage Action Zone had been launched to 

bring in visitors and shoppers.
- Tewkesbury remained in the top 5 local authority areas in the UK for growth.
- The Council was focusing on continuing its growth programme such as with 

the delivery of major schemes including Tewkesbury Garden Town and 
major infrastructure projects alongside GCC.

GFirst LEP
- Weekly updates were being provided to BEIS on the impact of Covid-19 and 

Brexit on sectors in the County.
- 117 grants were given out as part of the Covid Digital Recovery Grant 

scheme. 
- Conversations on a second scheme for sustainability grants had been 

paused until the new year in light of increasing Covid cases.
- A Christmas advert had been produced as part of the Think Gloucestershire 

campaign to promote supporting local businesses and  shopping and 
procuring locally. 

Katherine Martin, Data and Analysis Manager, GCC, provided the Committee with 
an update on the Economic Dashboard. The Economic Dashboard was attached to 
the agenda papers for this meeting.

There was a query as to whether the data showed if those who had been on 
furlough had been absorbed back into employment?

In response, it was understood that this impact could not yet be seen in the figures. 
It was therefore requested that once this data reflecting the end of furlough was 
available that it be included in the Economic Dashboard. 

314. FOREST OF DEAN BIOSPHERE RESERVE 

Peter Williams, Head of Paid Service, Forest of Dean District Council (FODDC), 
presented the Committee with an update on proposals for a Forest of Dean 
Biosphere Reserve. 

Members were shown a news video clip as context on the proposals. 

It was explained that the Forest Economic Partnership was leading on an exercise, 
funded by Arts Council England and the FODDC, to gauge public opinion on a 
Forest of Dean Biosphere Reserve.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

There had so far been 4.5k views of material providing information on the 
proposals, and 10 percent of these had translated into responses to the 
consultation. These figures were expected to increase, and communications 
colleagues had been asked to promote the information materials in order to 
encourage a wider audience to participate.

It was noted that the survey results would be analysed in the New Year and if there 
was demonstrable community support, FODDC would be seeking to move forward 
with a formal UNESCO designation.

The Committee briefly discussed the benefits and downsides of this designation, 
including what it could mean for business development in the area. It was 
understood that should proposals be pursued, further work to assess how 
businesses would be affected would be undertaken. 

315. STRATEGIC PLANNING IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

Sandra Ford, Head of Development Services, Tewkesbury Borough Council, 
presented the annual update on strategic and local plans in Gloucestershire.

It was understood that there had been strong delivery across all districts in the 
County and the report detailed the key strategic planning projects for 
Gloucestershire.

Members were advised that work to progress the Gloucestershire Statement of 
Common Ground was still on going as there were some areas where agreement 
had not been possible. 

It was also noted that further developments on the Planning White Paper were yet 
to materialise. 

Finally, it was noted that a number of changes had been made to the National 
Planning Policy Framework to improve design across the board and to ensure 
infrastructure needs were aligned with growth.

316. GFIRST LEP UPDATE 

Dev Chakraborty, Deputy Chief Executive of GFirst LEP, presented the Committee 
with an update on the work of the GFirst LEP.

In particular, members were updated on progress with the five shovel ready 
projects in the County that had been funded as a result of the LEP’s successful bid 
for £11.3million from the Government’s Getting Building Fund. It was understood 
that several of these were nearing or had reached completion, and that the LEP 
was lobbying for a visit from a senior minister in the Spring to visit these projects.

Activities as part of the Inward Investment Project had slowed down as a result of 
Covid, however the team was starting to work with key stakeholders again as the 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

big international events would be re-starting in 2022. The project was focused on 
the four key sectors of Cyber, Agri-Tech, Advanced Engineering & Manufacturing 
and Renewables, and work to promote the strengths of these sectors in 
Gloucestershire at the international events was underway. 

Members were advised that the LEP was working with GCC to consider launching a 
Made in Gloucestershire initiative which would enable businesses and traders to 
advertise to consumers that they supply Gloucestershire sourced products, and that 
those claims had been thoroughly vetted, checked and certified by Trading 
Standards Officers. A working group had been set up to consider this, with its first 
meeting held at the end of September, and the initiative was supported and 
welcomed by all parties. Next steps included establishing a budget, agreeing a 
timeline and defining the concept, with the next meeting due to take place at the 
end of this month. 

A request was made for a district council representative with experience of working 
in the food and drink industry to sit on the working group. It was also understood 
that the project could require funding and that this would be raised at the next 
GEGJC SOG meeting. 

The Committee was advised that an update on the Government’s LEP Review had 
not yet been received, which was frustrating given the uncertainty of core funding 
for the LEP and Growth Hubs from April 2022. It was hoped an announcement 
would be made at the beginning of December. 

317. BUSINESS RATE POOL 

Andrew Cummings, Strategic Director of Resources, Stroud District Council, 
provided the Committee with an update on the Gloucestershire Business Rate Pool.

In an update on the anticipated position of the pool and SEDF balance for 2021/22, 
it was understood that the estimated pool gains were currently expected to be 
£4.027m, which had reduced slightly from the last estimate, leading to an estimated 
SEDF allocation of £804k.

Confirmation of last year’s gain was still outstanding as audits had taken longer 
than expected, however this information would be reported back when available. 

The spending review in October had provided no clear statement on the future of 
Business Rates Pooling. More details on this were hoped for in December.

Following a member query, it was suggested that Leadership Gloucestershire 
consider the options for the Business Rate Pool, should the GEGJC cease to exist.

The Committee also considered a SEDF funding request to enable the investigation 
of options to better connect Kemble Train Station with Cirencester Town Centre, 
which was presented to the Committee by James Brain, Forward Planning 
Manager, Cotswold District Council.

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

Clarification was sought by a member as to how this project was of wider economic 
benefit to the County and as to whether other transport options in addition to rail 
were being considered. 

In response, it was explained that it was hoped by improving the connection of 
Kemble Train Station with Cirencester Town Centre it would help reduce the 
reliance on motor vehicles; help to regenerate the town; improve the night time 
economy and the vibrancy of the district; provide a better connection to the digital 
skills centre in Cirencester; and improve transport links with London. It was also 
confirmed that a number of options to improve the connection would be considered. 

It was also clarified that GCC, as the transport and highway authority, had been a 
critical friend to the bid, and following some revisions, was now happy to support 
the bid. Additionally the funding should not be used to further an ultra light railway 
study but instead to pursue a multi-modal study.

On being put to a vote, it was

RESOLVED to

Approve a £65,000 one-off revenue investment to deliver a feasibility study of 
transport options between Cirencester and Kemble which will improve links 
between the main railway line and town and area of Cirencester.

318. FORWARD (WORK) PLAN 

A request was made for an update on the Gloucestershire Skills Strategy to be 
included on the agenda for the additional meeting in January. 

319. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Committee noted the meeting dates for 2022. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.10 pm

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee actions – 17 November 2021

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. Minutes To amend the minutes of the meeting on 15th 
September as detailed in the notes for this 
meeting. 

Laura Powick Completed.

263. Minutes To arrange an additional GEGJC meeting for 
January 2022. 

Laura Powick Completed – additional 
meeting set for 26 January 
2022 at 2pm.

350. Employment and 
Skills

An update on the Skills Strategy to be provided at 
the additional meeting in January. 

Pete Carr To be delivered at the 
Committee meeting in 
January 2022

451. Employment and 
Skills

To circulate a paper detailing further data relating 
to the effectiveness of the careers support 
provided.  

Pete Carr Please see attached paper 
presented to the Child-
Friendly Gloucestershire 
Coalition Board. Further data 
will be shared with the 
Committee in the session on 
youth 
employment/unemployment.

552. Employment and 
Skills

Pete Carr to arrange an offline meeting with Cllr 
Cornell to discuss supporting the promotion of 
green skills in Gloucestershire. 

Pete Carr Cllr Cornell provided a very 
helpful update on this at the 
Gloucestershire Skills 
Advisory Panel (GSAP) 
meeting on 13/12/21 and her 
feedback has been 
incorporated into the final 
draft of the skills strategy.

653. Employment and 
Skills

Dev Chakraborty and Pete Carr to liaise with Paul 
James on how to promote and support students, 

Pete Carr/ Dev 
Chakraborty

Anjie Winter, GFirst LEP’s 
Employment & Skills Co-

P
age 11



employers and colleges with T Levels. Ordinator has booked a 
meeting on 20/12/21 with 
Paul James to discuss this as 
part of a more detailed 
discussion about the 
Gloucestershire Employment 
Charter.

754. Review of 
Gloucestershire 
Covid-19 Economic 
Recovery Plans

To include in the economic dashboard data that 
reflects the end of furlough. 

Katherine 
Martin/ Colin 
Chick

Due to data not being 
available until the new year, 
and as data around 
December can be impacted 
by Christmas jobs, it is likely 
that it won’t be until 
February/March 2022 that the 
full picture of the impact of 
furlough on data will start to 
be built. 

855. Business Rate Pool To request that Leadership Gloucestershire 
consider the options for the Business Rate Pool, 
should the GEGJC cease to exist. 

Mike Dawson To be raised at the 
Leadership Gloucestershire 
meeting in January. 

956. Business Rate Pool SEDF Request: Investigation options to better 
connect Kemble train station with Cirencester 
town centre. 

RESOLVED to
 
Approve a £65,000 one-off revenue investment to 
deliver a feasibility study of transport options 
between Cirencester and Kemble which will 
improve links between the main railway line and 

James Brain/ 
Mike Dawson

Completed.

P
age 12



town and area of Cirencester.

1057. Forward (Work) Plan To include the item on the Skills Strategy in the 
work plan for the additional January Committee 
meeting. 

Laura Powick Completed.

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



UPDATE ON THE EXTENSION TO THE INTER AUTHORITY 
AGREEMENT FOR THE GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC 
GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE UNTIL 1 APRIL 2023

AGENDA NO: 

Meeting 26 January 2022

Report author Gillian Parkinson
Assistant Director, Legal Services (Gloucestershire County Council)
Tel: 01452 328729
Email:  gillian.parkinson@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Background 
documents

Strategic Economic Plan for Gloucestershire 2014 and

Strategic Economic Plan for Gloucestershire Update 2018
Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/our-vision/strategic-economic-plan/  and

Gloucestershire County Council’s Democratic Services, Shire Hall, 
Gloucester, Gloucestershire, GL1 2TG

Main consultees Leadership Gloucestershire

Planned dates March 2022 – Letter signed by all the partner authorities to the Inter Authority 
Agreement dated 4 September 2014 (IAA) to be completed to enable the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (‘the Joint Committee’) to 
continue operating until 1 April 2023

Purpose of report To provide the Committee with an update on the proposed extension to the 
Inter Authority Agreement to enable the Joint Committee to continue 
operating until 1 April 2023.

Recommendations To note the arrangements to extend the Inter Authority Agreement to allow 
the Joint Committee to continue operating until 1 April 2023.

Reasons for 
recommendations

To update the Joint Committee on the arrangements to allow it to continue 
operating until 1 April 2023.

Resource 
Implications

None

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/our-vision/strategic-economic-plan/


Update 

1. The Joint Committee was formed on 4 September 2014 through an Inter Authority 
Agreement between the County Council and Gloucestershire District authorities (‘the 
partner authorities’) which sets out the parameters within which it is to operate and its 
terms of reference.  

2. The initial term for the Joint Committee, set out in the IAA, was for a five-year term 
which was due to end in September 2020.  In late July/August 2020, the partner 
authorities subsequently agreed to extend the term of the IAA until March 2022.

3. On 13 January 2022, the partner authorities considered the future of the Joint 
Committee at their Leadership Gloucestershire meeting.  Leadership Gloucestershire 
were mindful that the DLUHC ‘Levelling Up’ white paper had not been published, and it 
was likely to include further clarity about the overarching governance arrangements for 
delivering the Government’s levelling up agenda, which might impact the way the Joint 
Committee operates.  As a result, Leadership Gloucestershire were supportive of the 
IAA being extended until 1 April 2023 to enable the Joint Committee to continue 
operating pending further consideration of the white paper once it is published.

4. The next steps will be for the individual partner authorities to undertake their formal 
decision-making processes to enable the IAA to be extended to allow the Joint 
Committee to continue to operate until 1 April 2023.

Page 16



Overview of Skills Strategy for GEGJC
January, 2022

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6



P
age 18



Approach with the strategy
• Continuity of strategic direction: Local Industrial Strategy (LIS); Economic recovery response; Local 
Skills Report 2021; establishment of the Gloucestershire Employment & Skills Hub 

• Take local business needs into account: small‐scale survey; focus groups; national sectoral reports
• Links with existing strategies and plans: Careers Hub Strategic Plan; ‘transition to work’ workstream 
of Child‐Friendly Gloucestershire; GCC economic recovery, inclusive employment and Social Value 
plans; Business West‐led Local Skills Improvement Plan (LSIP) Trailblazer for health & social care and 
advanced manufacturing, aerospace and engineering

• Enable, co‐ordinate and facilitate: partnership working, sharing of resources, highlighting of funding 
gaps 

• Act as a ‘hook’ for funding: needed to ‘de‐risk’ investment by colleges and independent training 
providers; skills capital projects; UK Shared Prosperity Funding; other funding routes that will 
emerge

• Staying relevant and flexible: Considerable changes in employment; action plan will underpin and 
be refreshed and reported on annually

P
age 19



Skills that meet business needs
• Apprenticeships: numbers have declined; a way of attracting and retaining young 
people in the County; need better alignment from providers with County 
priorities (e.g. cyber and digital, health and care, ‘green’); need more SMEs 
offering apprenticeships

• Cross‐sector skills: leadership and management; cyber and digital;  
‘green’/sustainability

• Some sector‐specific skills: trades; welding; ‘green’ construction; etc.

There will be greater competition within and between sectors for employees and 
for some sectors, there are structural issues to address which are beyond the scope 
of the strategy e.g. pay and conditions, EU Exit, etc.

P
age 20



Skills that support individuals to achieve their 
potential

• Cyber and digital: from ‘digital citizen’ through to advanced cyber security
• Inclusive employment programmes: support for employers as well as 
individuals; maximising impact of national programmes operating in 
Gloucestershire (e.g. Restart); providing inclusive employment support as 
existing local ESF‐funded projects close (e.g. GEM, Workstart, NEETs 
project, etc.)

As competition for employees increases, the importance of earlier and more 
effective careers support and attracting a more diverse workforce and those 
currently further from the labour market will increase.

P
age 21



Skills intelligence, co‐ordination and investment
• Data analysis to help careers, employment and skills providers plan and 
invest

• ‘One front door’ careers, employment and training information and advice 
via online (skills portal, Careers Hub and Career Coach), face‐to‐face 
(Adviza, Careers Hub, DWP, E & S Hub, colleges and training providers)

• Maximise limited local resources: collaborative bids; Social Value and 
S106; Adult Education Budget; Gloucestershire Employment Charter; 
careers and jobs events/fairs; highlight funding gaps and seek solutions 

• Seek and obtain intelligence to help local providers: e.g. green skills

P
age 22



Action plan to implement the strategy
5 workstreams:
• Help local businesses to attract, retain and upskill employees (incl. 
through apprenticeships) 2 workstreams

• Help businesses and individuals develop their digital skills
• Provide skills and experiences that support individuals to achieve 
their potential

• Provide skills intelligence, co‐ordination and enable investment

Reviewed quarterly, updated every 6 months

P
age 23



Next steps
Final revisions, editing and design: January 2022

Publication, along with updated Local Skills Report and data analysis: 
28th January 2022 at https://www.gfirstlep.com/about‐us/skills‐for‐
business/

P
age 24



Q & A
Any follow‐up questions, please contact Pete Carr

Peter.carr@gfirstlep.com

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Summary of Glos Skills Strategy (This forms Section 2 of the 

Strategy)

What we plan to do and why
Support local employers to attract, recruit and retain the staff they need

Why?

For several years, employers in key sectors in Gloucestershire have been affected as ageing 
workforces and other structural issues have resulted in the loss of skills and knowledge from their 
organisations. The impacts of the Covid pandemic and EU Exit have intensified this trend and have 
led to a smaller pool of talent available for local employers. This means that some employers need 
to review and alter their recruitment, learning and development approaches to attract and retain 
staff. Strategically, there is a need to attract and retain more young people to work in 
Gloucestershire businesses, the majority of which are small to medium enterprises (SMEs).  

We will do this through:

 Helping businesses to enhance their strategic workforce planning capabilities and inclusive 
employment practices (Workstream 2)

 Helping businesses, especially SMEs, to maximise non-pay benefits such as work-life balance, 
childcare, flexible working, inclusive work practices, which have been proven to help attract 
and retain employees, including young people (Workstream 2)

 Helping local employers to attract a more diverse workforce, so widening the pool of talent 
available to them (Workstream 2)

 ‘Growing our own’ staff through Apprenticeships and T-Levels and ensuring local training 
providers offer the programmes local employers need (Workstream 1)

 Helping key local sectors to develop and promote clearer pathways into these sectors, 
especially where there is lack of awareness of opportunities (Workstreams 2,3, 5)

 Helping key local sectors form local/sub-regional centres of specialisation to build on 
clusters that already exist or are developing (e.g. cyber) (Workstream 3)

Support local employers to upskill and train their staff to invest in them and 
increase productivity

Why?

Employers will increasingly need to invest in their staff to retain their talent and improve business 
productivity. 

We will do this through:

 Delivering skills that are needed across many sectors e.g. cyber, digital, leadership & 
management, customer service, sustainability (Workstreams 1, 2,3, 5 in our Action Plan)

 Delivering sector-specific skills needs e.g. Engineering skills in a range of disciplines are 
needed in the agri-tech sector, the construction sector requires sustainable building skills. 
(Workstreams 1, 2,3, 5)

Page 27



 Taking employers’ training needs into account by matching local apprenticeships, T-levels 
and technical education programmes to local employers’ needs (Workstreams 1, 2,3, 5)

 Involving employers and trade unions in the promotion and delivery of training programmes 
for employees (Workstreams 1, 2,3, 5)

Ensure everyone in Gloucestershire has the opportunities and skills to enable 
them to work

Why?

Recent economic changes have resulted in some residents needing to seek careers and job roles in 
different sectors and organisations. 

We will do this through:

 Making career and job-change pathways clearer and easier to access (Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4 
and 5)

 Work with delivery partners to ensure individual residents tackle their barriers to 
employment or training (Workstream 2)

 Joined-up local provision and co-ordinated support (Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5)
 Working with local employers to enhance their inclusive employment practices (Workstream 

2)
 Seeking and securing resources to tackle digital poverty and digital exclusion, including the 

provision of digital skills at the levels required by local residents (Workstream 3)

Maximise the local employment opportunities presented by local 
developments

Why?

Contracts issued by local organisations provide substantial opportunities to build in guaranteed 
apprenticeships, employment and skills for Gloucestershire residents. These are not yet being fully 
utilised, even for major infrastructure or service delivery contracts.

We will do this through:

 Using and promoting good practice in the use of Social Value and Section 106 (Workstream 
2)

 Continuing to bid for projects and facilities that will provide employment and skills 
opportunities in the County e.g. the Severn Edge STEP nuclear fusion project at Berkeley and 
Oldbury (Workstream 2)

 The work of the ‘anchor institutions’ in Gloucestershire (Workstream 2)

Highlight and seek wider changes needed to support the improvement of 
recruitment and skills in the County

Why?

Changes to the employment and skills system in isolation are not enough. Other system changes are 
required to generate the conditions needed for employers to recruit, retain and train the staff they 
need and for individuals to work effectively.

Page 28



We will do this through:

 Feedback and lobbying with local and national politicians, funding agencies and national 
bodies (Workstreams 1 and 5)

 Examples include: Rural transport, broadband and digital poverty, pay and conditions in 
certain sectors/job roles, automation/robotics, improved funding for and access to further 
education and sustainable sixth-forms

 Working with inward investment partners to ensure that, wherever possible, they can 
recruit Gloucestershire residents with the required skills and qualifications (Workstream 5)

Co-Ordinate and collaborate to simplify the local employment and skills 
landscape and maximise the impact of limited local resources on the local 
employment and skills system

Why?

The employment and skills ‘landscape’ is complex, with many stakeholders. Businesses and 
individuals need help navigating their way through multiple, sometimes competing provision. 
Limited local resources can be more effectively and efficiently directed to helping local businesses 
and residents if this work is co-ordinated and undertaken collaboratively.

We will do this through:

 ‘One front door’ working with employers and residents, linking them with the right careers, 
employment and training providers for them (Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4, 5)

 Coordinated and joined-up working between local employment and skills providers and 
organisations and employers (Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4, 5)

 Collaborative bids to support the priorities outlined in this strategy (Workstream 5)
 Improving careers support and experience of the world of work for young people 

(Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4, 5)
 Helping employers to connect effectively with the education system so they can help 

develop the next generation of employees (Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4, 5)

For more detailed information about the actions we plan to take, please see our Employment & 
Skills Action Plan

This is provided for GEGJC members with this summary.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 54

Gloucestershire Skills Strategy 2021-2025 Draft v11 Last edited 11/01/22

Section 1: Overview, structure and purpose 
of the strategy
Overview of skills strategy

The skills strategy brings together an overview of the employment, recruitment and skills needs of 
local businesses and employers together with the skills that individuals need to achieve their 
potential. 

In order to provide these skills for local businesses and local residents, the complex, careers, 
employment and skills landscape needs to be ‘decluttered’, co-ordinated effectively across the 
County and for employers, training providers and funders to work collaboratively. 

This strategy seeks to highlight the ‘direction of travel’ of the skills needs of local business sectors 
and individuals so that colleges, schools, alternative provision settings, independent training 
providers and universities are all able to:

 align their provision as closely as possible to local employment and skills needs
 bid collaboratively for external funding for employment and skills, knowing what the local 

priorities are
 be responsive to rapidly-changing employment, careers, recruitment and skills needs

The strategy spells out some the challenges faced, by employers, residents, sectors and training 
providers. 

It highlights opportunities to build on the existing co-ordination of careers, employment and skills 
work in the County and showcases examples of good practice. 

Building on these opportunities and overcoming the challenges faced will require the co-operation 
and resources of a number of local partner organisations.

Finally, it is recognised that a strategy alone will not change the local careers, employment and skills 
landscape so this strategy is underpinned by an action plan ADD LINK that provides the specific 
actions to implement the strategy, who will undertake them, timescales, how success will be 
measured and whether or not resources are in place.

Page 31



Page 2 of 54

Section 2: What we plan to do and why

Section 3: The employment, recruitment and skills needs of businesses

Section 4: Snapshots of business sectors in Gloucestershire

Section 5: Issues and opportunities highlighted by local authorities

Section 6: Employment and skills schemes supported in Gloucestershire and opportunities for 
improvements

Section 7: Skills intelligence, co-ordination and investment – making things happen 

Annexes: 

Page 32



Page 3 of 54

Section 2: What we plan to do and why
Support local employers to attract, recruit and retain the staff they need

Why?

For several years, employers in key sectors in Gloucestershire have been affected as ageing 
workforces and other structural issues have resulted in the loss of skills and knowledge from their 
organisations. The impacts of the Covid pandemic and EU Exit have intensified this trend and have 
led to a smaller pool of talent available for local employers. This means that some employers need 
to review and alter their recruitment, learning and development approaches to attract and retain 
staff. Strategically, there is a need to attract and retain more young people to work in 
Gloucestershire businesses, the majority of which are small to medium enterprises (SMEs).  

We will do this through:

 Helping businesses to enhance their strategic workforce planning capabilities and inclusive 
employment practices (Workstream 2)

 Helping businesses, especially SMEs, to maximise non-pay benefits such as work-life balance, 
childcare, flexible working, inclusive work practices, which have been proven to help attract 
and retain employees, including young people (Workstream 2)

 Helping local employers to attract a more diverse workforce, so widening the pool of talent 
available to them (Workstream 2)

 ‘Growing our own’ staff through Apprenticeships and T-Levels and ensuring local training 
providers offer the programmes local employers need (Workstream 1)

 Helping key local sectors to develop and promote clearer pathways into these sectors, 
especially where there is lack of awareness of opportunities (Workstreams 2,3, 5)

 Helping key local sectors form local/sub-regional centres of specialisation to build on 
clusters that already exist or are developing (e.g. cyber) (Workstream 3)

Support local employers to upskill and train their staff to invest in them and 
increase productivity

Why?

Employers will increasingly need to invest in their staff to retain their talent and improve business 
productivity. 

We will do this through:

 Delivering skills that are needed across many sectors e.g. cyber, digital, leadership & 
management, customer service, sustainability (Workstreams 1, 2,3, 5 in our Action Plan)

 Delivering sector-specific skills needs e.g. Engineering skills in a range of disciplines are 
needed in the agri-tech sector, the construction sector requires sustainable building skills. 
(Workstreams 1, 2,3, 5)

 Taking employers’ training needs into account by matching local apprenticeships, T-levels 
and technical education programmes to local employers’ needs (Workstreams 1, 2,3, 5)

 Involving employers and trade unions in the promotion and delivery of training programmes 
for employees (Workstreams 1, 2,3, 5)

Page 33



Page 4 of 54

Ensure everyone in Gloucestershire has the opportunities and skills to enable 
them to work

Why?

Recent economic changes have resulted in some residents needing to seek careers and job roles in 
different sectors and organisations. 

We will do this through:

 Making career and job-change pathways clearer and easier to access (Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4 
and 5)

 Work with delivery partners to ensure individual residents tackle their barriers to 
employment or training (Workstream 2)

 Joined-up local provision and co-ordinated support (Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5)
 Working with local employers to enhance their inclusive employment practices (Workstream 

2)
 Seeking and securing resources to tackle digital poverty and digital exclusion, including the 

provision of digital skills at the levels required by local residents (Workstream 3)

Maximise the local employment opportunities presented by local 
developments

Why?

Contracts issued by local organisations provide substantial opportunities to build in guaranteed 
apprenticeships, employment and skills for Gloucestershire residents. These are not yet being fully 
utilised, even for major infrastructure or service delivery contracts.

We will do this through:

 Using and promoting good practice in the use of Social Value and Section 106 (Workstream 
2)

 Continuing to bid for projects and facilities that will provide employment and skills 
opportunities in the County e.g. the Severn Edge STEP nuclear fusion project at Berkeley and 
Oldbury (Workstream 2)

 The work of the ‘anchor institutions’ in Gloucestershire (Workstream 2)

Highlight and seek wider changes needed to support the improvement of 
recruitment and skills in the County

Why?

Changes to the employment and skills system in isolation are not enough. Other system changes are 
required to generate the conditions needed for employers to recruit, retain and train the staff they 
need and for individuals to work effectively.

We will do this through:

 Feedback and lobbying with local and national politicians, funding agencies and national 
bodies (Workstreams 1 and 5)

Page 34



Page 5 of 54

 Examples include: Rural transport, broadband and digital poverty, pay and conditions in 
certain sectors/job roles, automation/robotics, improved funding for and access to further 
education and sustainable sixth-forms

 Working with inward investment partners to ensure that, wherever possible, they can 
recruit Gloucestershire residents with the required skills and qualifications (Workstream 5)

Co-Ordinate and collaborate to simplify the local employment and skills 
landscape and maximise the impact of limited local resources on the local 
employment and skills system

Why?

The employment and skills ‘landscape’ is complex, with many stakeholders. Businesses and 
individuals need help navigating their way through multiple, sometimes competing provision. 
Limited local resources can be more effectively and efficiently directed to helping local businesses 
and residents if this work is co-ordinated and undertaken collaboratively.

We will do this through:

 ‘One front door’ working with employers and residents, linking them with the right careers, 
employment and training providers for them (Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4, 5)

 Coordinated and joined-up working between local employment and skills providers and 
organisations and employers (Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4, 5)

 Collaborative bids to support the priorities outlined in this strategy (Workstream 5)
 Improving careers support and experience of the world of work for young people 

(Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4, 5)
 Helping employers to connect effectively with the education system so they can help 

develop the next generation of employees (Workstreams 1, 2, 3, 4, 5)

For more detailed information about the actions we plan to take, please see our Employment & 
Skills Action Plan ADD LINK or direct to appendix.

Section 3: The employment, recruitment and 
skills needs of businesses
This section of the strategy provides an overview of the employment, recruitment and skills needs 
of businesses and other employer organisations in Gloucestershire.

Summary of this section:

What has been happening and why?

Page 35



Page 6 of 54

Demand for skills and talent in Gloucestershire is strong, with local employers advertising 
approximately 158,260 vacancies in 2021 and 96,718 vacancies in 2020.

The impacts of the Covid pandemic and EU Exit have combined with structural challenges in some 
sectors to significantly reduce the talent pool in Gloucestershire and increase the competition for 
staff between and within sectors.

What we plan to do 

We will need to continue to expand and strengthen:

 Our support for employers to extend their reach to a wider group of Gloucestershire 
residents and other local talent pools

 The ‘fit’ between local employer skills and recruitment needs and the 
courses/training/qualifications that the local and national training providers deliver

 Our support for the GFirst Careers Hub and its work with employers, schools, colleges and 
alternative provision settings

 The links between local employers and young people to inspire and inform them about local 
career opportunities and help them make informed decisions about jobs and careers

 Our supply and availability of trained careers advisers both for young people and adults 
retraining/changing careers

Skills and talent that meet business needs

Demand for skills and talent in Gloucestershire is strong, with local employers advertising 
approximately 158,260 vacancies in 2021 and 96,718 vacancies in 2020 and seeking employees with 
skills through from Entry level to post-graduate level (Level 7). Some sectors such as health and 
social care, had shortages before the pandemic which have since increased, while other sectors such 
as hospitality and tourism and logistics, have been particularly impacted by the loss of EU workers 
and employees transitioning to other sectors.

Impacts of the Covid pandemic and EU Exit

Shortages of talent to fill particular roles

The combination of Covid and EU Exit has resulted in shortages of talent to fill particular roles and, in 
some sectors, challenges in recruiting to multiple roles within the sector. An example is construction 
workers where the number of EU construction workers in the UK has halved in the past 4 years and 
contractors laying off workers at the start of the pandemic have not been able to re-hire them. 
Other examples include: heating engineers, food processors, hospitality and catering workers – 
especially chefs and waiting staff, IT and computing roles, retail supply chain roles, truck drivers. In 
June 2021, UK Hospitality indicated that there was a shortfall of approx. 188,000 workers in the 
sector nationally and at one point in October 2021 Gloucestershire hospitality employers confirmed 
they had 664 hotel vacancies, 599 restaurant staff vacancies and 292 bar staff vacancies – all 
permanent roles, as opposed to those usually hired in the run up to the Christmas period.  

Ironically, given the previous predictions and focus on a ‘high skills, high wage’ economy, many of 
the job roles most affected by and in demand, include lower skilled and lower wage jobs.

At a national level, HM Government monitors skills shortages and produces a ‘Skilled worker 
shortages list’ as well as implementing tactical changes such as offering short-term visas for those 

Page 36



Page 7 of 54

meeting the criteria on the skilled worker shortages list, DfT relaxing rules to enable drivers to work 
longer and funding apprenticeships.

https://www.prospects.ac.uk/skills-shortages-and-covid-19

Recruitment is taking longer and costing more

With skills in short supply, many employers find the recruitment process taking longer and those 
candidates with in demand skillsets and experience are able to leverage higher salaries. 

A recent report from the Open University indicated that 70% of business leaders were finding the 
recruitment process is taking longer - by an average of one month and 22 days, resulting in 64% 
spending more on recruitment, with costs increasing by 49%. 

In order to attract talent, employers are under pressure to increase salaries and this is contributing 
to inflation. According to the Recruitment and Employment Confederation, wages have been rising 
the fastest post-Covid and EU exit than they have in the last 7 years. Day rates for skilled 
tradespeople have increased by 15% and the OU Report indicated that two thirds of the employers 
surveyed were obliged to increase salaries offered to recruit the staff they needed.

Reduced number of skilled workers in UK

A January 2021 report by the Economic Statistics Centre of Excellence suggested that the non-UK 
population had reduced by 1.3 million, partially as a result of EU exit.

The hospitality sector across the EU has experienced challenges in recruiting workers but with the 
UK now outside the EU, these challenges have increased further and faster.

https://www.escoe.ac.uk/estimating-the-uk-population-during-the-pandemic/

The need to ‘grow our own’ talent locally

Increasingly, employers are aware that they will need to assist with growing the talent pipeline in 
the UK, rather than seeking employees from EU and beyond. However, this is not a ‘quick fix’ and 
will take time and investment both from Government and employers. The DfT statement ‘Employers 
should invest in our domestic workforce instead of relying on labour from abroad’ is correct but 
underplays the challenges this brings.

What if businesses are unable to recruit?

Many employers have been unable to increase salaries to attract new staff with the skillsets they 
need so they have chosen to either hire staff at a lower level than intended or simply leave the role 
vacant. 

This in turn forces employers to spend more on training staff to bring them up to the required 
levels/standards and/or spend more on temporary staff.

This lack of suitably trained staff and senior managers with the appropriate leadership and 
management skills, means that many businesses are not as flexible and adaptable as they need to be 
to navigate their way successfully through the recent rapid political, economic, social and 
technological (PEST) changes. If businesses are unable to navigate these changes and continue to 
adapt, some will not be able to continue to trade.

Page 37

https://www.prospects.ac.uk/skills-shortages-and-covid-19
https://www.escoe.ac.uk/estimating-the-uk-population-during-the-pandemic/


Page 8 of 54

https://www.open.ac.uk/business/apprenticeships/blog/uk-skills-shortage-costing-organisations-
%C2%A363-billion

Increases in job postings

Nationally, the pattern is of substantially increased job postings across a number of sectors. Recent 
ONS data shows the number of job vacancies in September to November 2021 continued to rise to a 
new record high of 1,219,000; this was an increase of 434,500 from its pre-coronavirus (COVID-19) 
pandemic level (January to March 2020), with 13 of the 18 industry sectors showing record highs.

Source: Office for National Statistics

Nationally, only one of the eighteen industry sectors did not display quarterly growth in September 
to November 2021. With the exception of electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning supply, 
quarterly growth was seen in all industries. The fastest rates of growth were seen in water supply, 
sewerage, waste management and remediation services (41.7%), and manufacturing (26.0%).

Page 38

https://www.open.ac.uk/business/apprenticeships/blog/uk-skills-shortage-costing-organisations-%C2%A363-billion
https://www.open.ac.uk/business/apprenticeships/blog/uk-skills-shortage-costing-organisations-%C2%A363-billion


Page 9 of 54

Source: Office for National Statistics

In Gloucestershire, there has been a similar pattern with Gloucestershire’s six districts all showing 
job posting numbers above pre-pandemic levels. The below shows total jobs by district from January 
2020 to November 2021, with most districts displaying a similar trend over the past few months and 
all seeing an increase when compared to October 2021. Gloucestershire job posting numbers for the 
month of November 2021 were around 54,875 which is an increase of around 5,981 job postings 
when compared to updated October 2021 figure of 48,894.

Page 39



Page 10 of 54

There is now greater competition within and between sectors for employees and for some sectors, 
there are structural issues to address which are beyond the scope of this strategy e.g. pay and 
conditions, EU Exit, etc.

As competition for employees increases, the importance of earlier and more effective careers 
support and attracting a more diverse workforce and those currently further from the labour 
market will increase.

Job retention scheme – Furlough

The Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (furlough) was announced by the UK Government on 20th 
March 2020 to support employers who could not maintain their workforce because their operations 
had been affected by coronavirus pandemic. The Scheme was intended to run between 1st March 
and 31st May 2020 but was extended, with some adjustments, to 30th September 2021. 

Employers were able to apply for grants so that they could cover furloughed employees’ usual 
monthly wage costs for unworked hours, up to a cap of £2,500 per month to June 2021 and then this 
grant was reduced between July and end of September 2021. 

Up to the end of the scheme in September 2021, Gloucestershire saw a cumulative total of 113,500 
employments supported by the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme at various times. Final confirmed 
figures show there were a total of 8,500 employments furloughed in Gloucestershire at the end of 
the scheme in September 2021, with 3,210 employments being in the 45 to 59 age bracket.

Page 40



Page 11 of 54

The below shows the district breakdown of workers furloughed at the end of September 2021 with 
Stroud, Cheltenham and Gloucester seeing some of the highest numbers.

Age profile of furloughed employments

When looking at the age profile of those furloughed employments at the end of the scheme, the age 
groups with the largest number of furloughed employments were 50 to 54 (1,110) and 55 to 59 
(1,100) and 45 to 49 (1,000).

Page 41



Page 12 of 54

Sectors in Gloucestershire most affected by furlough

According to an ONS survey in July 2021, nationally, the sectors most affected in the latter stages of 
furlough were performing arts; aerospace and air transport 

Sectors in Gloucestershire most affected by furlough were Accommodation and food services and 
Wholesale and retail; repair of motor vehicles, which saw some of the largest numbers of 
furloughed employments. However, all sectors have seen employments furloughed at some point 
during the scheme.

At the end of September 2021, the wholesale and retail; repair of motor vehicles and 
accommodation and food services sectors saw some of the largest numbers of furloughed 
employments still in place. Other sectors still seeing high numbers were professional and scientific 
and technical, manufacturing, and administrative and support services.

The following graph shows the total number of furloughed employments in Gloucestershire still in 
place as the scheme came to a close, which includes claims made up to the 21st November 2021

Ageing population and replacement demand

Gloucestershire has more people in the 50-59 age band for both male and female, when compared 
to other age groups in the county. The size of this population, and the fact that it has been fairly 
static in size as the people have increased in age, suggests that Gloucestershire may face the issue of 
declining worker availability in the next 15 years as this group approaches retirement age.

Page 42

https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/businessservices/bulletins/businessinsightsandimpactontheukeconomy/29thjuly2021%20)


Page 13 of 54

The impacts of Covid on employment trends

Lessons learned from across the EU include:

Employment grew in jobs that are critical, can be carried out from home and require low social 
interaction

Examples include insurance, computer programming and telecommunications sectors. Jobs that 
could not be carried out from home saw a reduction in employment. This was highest in sectors 
most severely affected by lockdown measures e.g. accommodation, food and travel and lowest in 
jobs with high social interaction, such as health, personal care and childcare workers.

When comparing Gloucestershire job posting occupations pre-pandemic in February 2020 to 
November 2021, those that have seen the biggest increase are care workers and home carers, sales 
accounts and business managers as well as sales/retail and kitchen and catering assistants. There 
have also been increases in jobs that can be carried out from home, more specifically administrative 
assistants, bookkeepers/payroll managers, finance and investment analysts and IT specialist 
managers.

Geographical impact has been uneven and may widen inequalities that already existed before the 
pandemic 

Job losses were greater in rural areas than in cities and in areas where tourism employment was 
significant.

Regions most resilient to the economic shock of COVID-19 tend to be ones with high regional 
productivity, high level of skilled population levels, high investment in research and development, 
quality local public institutions and solid digital infrastructure. Overall, well-performing labour 
markets proved to be better protected against the economic downturn.

The decline in employment rate was slightly higher for men than for women but the pandemic 
highlighted long-standing gender inequalities. Women experienced a steeper fall in working hours 
than men in the second quarter of 2020 since some sectors characterised by high female 
employment (e.g. accommodation and food service activities) were strongly impacted by lockdowns. 
Also, women continued to take on the largest share of caring responsibilities, and faced challenges in 
balancing work and private life.

Teleworkers are satisfied with working from home when they receive the IT and other equipment 
they need to do their work, when they do not have to work considerably longer hours and when 
work does not interfere with family time.

Source: ESDE review 

What do these challenges mean for Gloucestershire?

We will need to continue to expand and strengthen:

 Our support for local businesses and employers to enable them to become more inclusive 
employers, reaching and attracting wider pools of talent than they currently do

 Our support for the GFirst Careers Hub and its work with employers, schools, colleges and 
alternative provision settings to build a pipeline of local talent

Page 43

https://ec.europa.eu/social/BlobServlet?docId=24223&langId=en


Page 14 of 54

 The links between local employers and young people to inspire and inform them about local 
career opportunities and help them make informed decisions about jobs and careers

 Our supply and availability of trained careers advisers both for young people and adults 
retraining/changing careers

 The ‘fit’ between local employer skills and recruitment needs and the 
courses/training/qualifications that the local and national training providers deliver in 
Gloucestershire

Page 44



Page 15 of 54

Section 4: Snapshots of business sectors in 
Gloucestershire
This section provides an overview of the growth predictions, employment trends, existing and 
emerging skills needs for each sector, opportunities, threats and initiatives that are already 
underway and could be developed further.

Summary

What has been happening and why?

 Each of the main business sectors in Gloucestershire has been impacted by recent economic 
changes driven by factors such as Covid, EU Exit, ageing workforce, the comparative 
attractiveness, salaries, terms and conditions of job roles and sectors. 

 The majority of sectors in the County are reporting challenges in recruiting the number and 
quality of staff they need

 There are opportunities to strengthen or support all the business sectors and these are 
detailed in the relevant sector snapshots

 The sectors report some specific skills needs and where reported, these are included in the 
sector snapshots

What we plan to do 

We will need to continue to expand and strengthen:

 Our support for employers to extend their reach to a wider group of Gloucestershire 
residents and other local talent pools

 The ‘fit’ between local employer skills and recruitment needs and the 
courses/training/qualifications that the local and national training providers deliver – the 
summaries provided in the sector snapshots should help guide this

 Our links with union learning providers to ensure awareness of the support and skills 
training opportunities they offer to their members and other employees

 Our support for the GFirst Careers Hub and its work with employers, schools, colleges and 
alternative provision settings

 The links between local employers and young people to inspire and inform them about local 
career opportunities and help them make informed decisions about jobs and careers

 Our supply and availability of trained careers advisers both for young people and adults 
retraining/changing careers

Advanced Manufacturing and Engineering

Please note that Business West has been contracted to research and report on the skills needs of 
this sector as part of the Department for Education (DfE) Local Skills Improvement Plan (LSIP) 
Trailblazer. This research will provide more detail and can be found at 
https://www.businesswest.co.uk/local-skills-improvement-plan-lsip-west-england-plus

Page 45

https://www.businesswest.co.uk/local-skills-improvement-plan-lsip-west-england-plus


Page 16 of 54

State of Play:
On the whole, future growth predictions appear to be stabilising, but some businesses have reported 
sales decreases and the number of survey respondents expecting to increase staff numbers and 
investment in the next six months has also fallen. Despite this, future sales predictions have 
increased, which indicates that businesses across the region may be planning to streamline current 
processes or utilise investments previously made to increase productivity, boost sales, and continue 
to grow.

Skills Needs:
Supply chain issues are not the only challenges being faced by SME manufacturers across the South 
West; over half of respondents (56%) from a Gloucestershire skills survey said that recruitment is 
also causing concerns. The South West reported a higher percentage of businesses in the sector 
facing recruitment challenges than the national average and some specific regional support could be 
required in this area. The challenges around recruitment appear to be affecting manufacturers 
regardless of whether their trade has increased or reduced since COVID-19, indicating a universal 
problem that needs to be addressed.

Strengths and opportunities:
As well as causing barriers to growth, these supply chain issues could also present an opportunity for 
SME manufacturers to work collaboratively by connecting those who are unable to fulfil demand, 
with those who are still struggling with a lack of demand. A number of respondents have told us they 
are working closely with both customers and suppliers to:

 Understand future demand and plan for the longer term
 Review/change inventory holding positions to maintain supply and minimise the impact of 

price changes for customers
 Review and often extend lead times to provide accurate forecasts
 Increase their own supply chains to maintain supply to their customers

Threats
Recruitment challenges are being experienced by a diverse range of businesses, regardless of
their current situation or future growth expectations, and has been cited by 56% of regional 
respondents - 7% greater than nationally.

Alarmingly, almost all firms are citing supply chain issues, which has the potential to constrain 
present and future growth prospects for the manufacturing industry across the South West of 
England. 96% of respondents have said that price changes are causing challenges, with 93%
believing that this is being driven by a lack of raw materials available. This regional report also 
suggests that SME manufacturers are under pressure from their customers to maintain
supplies and costs, whilst, at the same time, their suppliers are looking to increase the price of the 
goods they need to purchase. On top of this, there is a need for lead times to be extended to cope 
with the lack of availability.

Agriculture, Food & Rural businesses

State of Play: 
In 2019, there were an estimated 8000 people employed in the agriculture, forestry and fishing 
industries in Gloucestershire, which equates to 2.6% of the total workforce, compared to just 1.6% 
of the workforce employed in this sector nationally.

Page 46



Page 17 of 54

According to the government’s National Food Strategy, culinary skills have diminished across every 
social class since convenience food became widely available, and they are still diminishing as one 
generation after another grows up without trying cookery at home. 
From a farming perspective, skills, knowledge, health of workers and employment make up the 
human capital metric of a farm. With a real lack of perception of farming as a viable career choice, 
and with fewer migrant workers available, the farming system cannot function if one of these 
metrics is out of kilter. 

Skills Needs:
Significant digital and data skills are required in agriculture, with more required in the future. 
Gloucestershire has ambitions to lead and support agri-tech and skills needed include: Agri-data 
analysis – including for claims verification; Cyber Security/Security by Design; Application 
development/programming; Internet of Things – hardware development; Maintenance engineers 
and user support skills; robotics and AI; 
There is an ongoing demand for engineers in agriculture: design; electronic; geospacial; 
manufacturing; mechanical; refrigeration in addition to sales and supply chain management roles.
Vets and vetinary nurses – There is considerable replacement demand as vets and vetinary nurses 
retire from the workforce and/or go into other sectors to seek better pay, conditions and work-life 
balance. EU Exit has also impacted on recruitment at the same time as substantial numbers of 
people bought pets and increased the number of animals needing treatment.
Butchery – the British Meat Industry reported a 10-15% reduction in the trade pre-pandemic. They 
are campaigning to have ‘Butchers’ added to the Shortage Occupation List which is used to vet 
skilled migrants.
Awareness of where food comes from – using organisations such as LEAF into community projects, 
schools and urban environments.  An understanding will generate the awareness and the 
appreciation of the food chain system and those in it.
Culinary skills and knowledge and embedding cookery and nutrition teaching as a mainstream 
subject and not a ‘second-class’ subject.
The Country Land Owners Association (CLA) are aiming to reduce barriers to new entrants into 
farming. Landowners are keen to support but are unsure of how the Environment and Land 
Management Sector (ELMS) and the Basic Payment scheme will operate and affect land owner 
management.
There is a changing perception of farming and rural skills amongst younger people – Many do not 
see the sector as attractive and in order to alter this view they need to be able to see and experience 
farming as a viable career choice.

Strengths and opportunities:
Gloucestershire Food Strategy: Gloucestershire’s Good Food Revolution has a vision for 
Gloucestershire farmers and food businesses to exist in a network of flexible, efficient and diverse 
local supply models serving private and public markets with a high demand for sustainably produced 
local food.   
The GFirst LEP Agri Food & Rural business group has formed a ‘current and future skills’ working 
group to identify areas where skills are lacking, the effect this can have on the farming and wider 
environment, and plans to get more people to study farming as a career choice. 
Defra's agricultural transition plan aims to pull together a national infrastructure around supporting 
new entrants into agriculture and to innovate and drive agricultural businesses. A grant structure will 
encourage individuals to the scheme, with the group’s support to run a pilot in Gloucestershire.
Hartpury Agri-tech Innovation Farm is shaping the future of digital farming to meet the global 
demand for new technologies in farming. The Tech Box Park will create a new kind of workspace 
dedicated to enabling the growth and development of Gloucestershire’s agri-tech businesses. 

Page 47



Page 18 of 54

Hartpury College and Hartpury University vetinary nursing courses have very successful progression 
rates into full-time employment.

Banking & Finance, Professional Services 

State of Play: 
Between December 2020 and November 2021 financial sector job postings in Gloucestershire saw an 
increase of 43%, from 2,747 in December 2020 to 6,339 in November 2021.  (EMSI job posting data.) 
With such a vast array of roles from statisticians and economists to payroll clerk and junior accountant, 
there are a number of opportunities available to all kinds of professionals.

Almost 1 in 5 of all graduates entering the UK labour market each year are employed in financial, 
professional and business services (FPBS) – and around 1 in 6 of new apprentices in England and 
Wales. Only 4% of the top 1000 Financial and Professional Business services are based in the South 
West, with 49% located in London.

Skills Needs:
Many large financial services businesses are increasingly offering sponsorship, as they have the 
processes and financial stability to be able to do so. Employers are finding it increasingly difficult to 
find top finance talent. Consideration is being given to sponsoring accounting and finance 
professionals from overseas.  Locally, there is a shortage of accountants as fewer people study 
accountancy as a career choice.  Some of those who would have been potential employees for local 
financial services companies have been attracted to larger cities, especially as companies there are 
still offering ‘London weighting’ style salary benefits whilst flexible working enables employees to 
travel into the office much less often and live outside of the cities in less expensive areas.  This 
means that Gloucestershire businesses need to offer better incentives to attract people with the 
right skills, but not just monetary incentives: a better work / life balance, flexible working options are 
a given now.

Strengths and opportunities: 
In 2017, Lloyds Banking Group (LBG) set out to forecast the skills they would need over the next 
three years to help them successfully deliver their new business strategy. LBG had re-focused their 
work with graduates and apprenticeships to build the identified key future skills. The Group’s 
location strategy also played a key role, with targeted recruitment campaigns focussed on attracting 
key future skills to 5 specific ‘hubs’ across the UK (London, South West, North West, West Yorkshire, 
and Scotland). Lessons from this work could be adopted by other Financial Services companies and 
those in other sectors too.

Research from PWC highlighted that 93% of CEOs who had introduced upskilling programmes 
reported that these programmes had increased productivity. Upskilling also helped attract and 
retain talent and deliver a resilient workforce. 

There are opportunities to build a lifelong learning culture across the sector through: enhancing 
strategic workforce planning capabilities; supporting mid-career retraining through an employer-led 
skills brokerage service; and developing and promoting clearer pathways into the sector. There are 
also opportunities to attract and retain highly skilled talent through forming a local/sub-regional 
centre of specialisation and building on clusters that already exist or are developing (e.g. cyber), 
locating senior roles in the county and strengthening the talent pipeline.

Construction & Infrastructure

Page 48



Page 19 of 54

State of Play: 
Need for more construction workers

 The level of output growth means the South West construction workforce will increase, 
although the average annual growth rate of 0.7% is just slightly lower than the UK figure of 
1.0%. This means that the South West construction workforce of 244,000 in 2020 will 
steadily increase to 252,600 by the end of 2025.

 The annual recruitment requirement in the South West is set to average 2.6% per year, 
based on 2020 workforce levels, well above the UK figure of 1.6% and the strongest regional 
rate in the forecast.

 The shortfall in the number of skilled construction workers currently at its highest point 
since 2007 (Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS)).

Need to increase the appeal of construction careers with young people
 The appeal of construction as a career for young people is low, scoring 4.2 out of 10 among 

14 to 19 year olds (Construction Industry Training Board (CITB)).
 

 Only one in ten children between the ages of 16 and 18 would consider a career in 
construction, fearing that the industry would be ‘challenging and unexciting’ (L&Q Feb 2019) 

Ageing workforce
 One in five construction employees is aged over 55 (2011 census). 

 The HM Construction Sector Deal highlighted that 32% of the UK construction sector 
workforce is aged 50 or over, with only 10% under the age of 25.  

 The Farmer review of construction skills (Modernise or Die, 2016) has identified the 
potential for the industry’s workforce to decline by 20-25% in a decade. 

Green skills and sustainable construction
There is a shortage of retrofit skilled workers and construction professionals who understand and 
have experience of using sustainable construction methods.

Skills Needs:
This increase in demand means the South West construction industry will have to increase current 
recruitment by 6,400 new workers each year to have the workforce to deliver expected work 
between the end of 2020 and 2025.
The following occupations have some of the strongest recruitment requirement levels:
• Wood trades and interior fit out (1,550 per year)
• Electrical trades and installation (750 per year)
• Non-construction professional, technical, IT, and other office-based staff (750 per year).
However, there will also be increased demand for labourers, plant operatives, surveyors and
other construction professional and technical staff.

Strengths and opportunities:
Local opportunities in Gloucestershire such as The Golden Valley Development, The Forum and The 
Kings Quarter development in Gloucester, and the recent Levelling Up funding awards in Forest of 
Dean, Gloucester and to Gloucestershire County Council have resulted in a number of opportunities 
that will increase the demand for construction skills in the county. (Please also see Section % of this 
strategy).

Page 49



Page 20 of 54

Sustainable development opportunities have been created through Green /Net Zero developments 
for retrofit skills in order to support Govt aspirations towards Net Zero. Stroud District Council’s 
successful One Public Estate bid provides a strong learning opportunity to clarify retrofit needs and 
the skills/skilled workforce needed to support this work. This in turn will enable us to develop ways 
to scale up this work.

Gloucestershire College and South Gloucestershire & Stroud College have construction training 
provision from L1 upwards.

The Gloucestershire Construction Training Group, established in 2004, provides a forum for training 
providers engaged in construction training and other partners, to come together to tackle 
construction skills needs in a co-ordinated manner.

The AccXel Centre in Cinderford was launched in December 2021 following an investment of £1.96 
million from GFirst LEP through the Getting Building Fund and it has been established as the 
construction sector’s first co-funded, industry-led construction skills accelerator centre. The AccXel 
programmes have been designed to ensure that individuals receive the best theoretical and practical 
construction education available, with a job at the end of it. Sustainability in the sector is taught via 
specialist professional courses, and embedded within all direct delivery training. This is to ensure 
that people entering and upskilling within the industry are educated fully in environmental and 
sustainability considerations. The AccXel Centre also seeks to challenge and address issues 
surrounding diversity within construction and perception within the industry. 

Cyber-Tech

State of Play:
Cyber crime is on the increase, and remote working bring new cyber challenges.  Cyber attacks on 
businesses are increasing, partly because the potential gains larger.
There are currently 620 digital businesses trading across the county and this number is increasing. 
This presents a notable scale of activity and the foundations of a flourishing cyber sector. 
Gloucestershire is the second largest cyber cluster behind London, with Cheltenham having the 
highest density of cyber businesses in the country.

Skills Needs:
Staff at all levels in all businesses and organisations need knowledge of the implications of cyber 
attacks, an awareness of cyber crime and who is accountable, and protective prevention measures 
to take. The same can be said of individual Gloucestershire residents.

The South West Cyber Resilience Centre, part of the National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) and run 
by serving police officers, delivers simple and comprehensible guidance on reducing cyber risks, 
cyber attack prevention to protect businesses and third sector organisations in the South 
West region.

Cynam and GFirst Careers Hub working together
The recruitment of an Employment Engagement Enterprise Co-Ordinator (EEEC) in 2021, co-funded 
by the Careers & Enterprise Company (CEC) and Capita, employed by Cynam and working closely 
with the GFIrst LEP Careers Hub team, provides a good opportunity to positively influence and co-
ordinate a wide range of cyber and digital skills initiatives in the County. It also enables young people 
to understand and experience the opportunities the cyber and digital sector can offer.

Page 50



Page 21 of 54

The formation of a Gloucestershire Digital Skills Partnership would further assist with the strategic 
and operational co-ordination of cyber and digital provision in the County and would provide further 
strategic and operational support to the EEEC and training providers. Cynam, The University of 
Gloucestershire, Gloucestershire College and other local stakeholders have expressed support for 
such a development.

The Golden Valley Development will increase capacity and sector growth with 11,000 jobs. It will 
showcase Cheltenham and the county as a cradle for cyber tech innovation. GFirst LEP, 
Gloucestershire county Council and Cheltenham Borough Council are working with GCHQ, Hub8 and 
CyNam to better define the offer and to promote the area. It is also creating a localised industrial 
strategy which will highlight this sector as one that has huge potential.
The cyber industry is recognising that people with autism can provide invaluable skills to the sector 
and are often the best performers in technical roles. GCHQ, for example, is one of the biggest 
employers of autistic people in the country.  

Education sector
It is important to highlight that the education sector which includes schools, colleges, alternative 
provision settings, independent training providers and universities, has its own recruitment and 
retention challenges. These have been an issue for the sector for some years and in particular 
specialisms (e.g. computer science teachers in schools, construction and plumbing lecturers in FE, 
etc.) but the recent economic changes have further entrenched these issues as potential 
teachers/tutors/lecturers see better paid opportunities outside the sector. The shift to 
online/blended learning during the Covid pandemic, whilst suiting a lot of the workforce and their 
learners, has been very challenging for some, and has led some staff to seek other work or 
retirement. Similarly, the huge growth in demand for cyber, digital and IT professionals to support 
the significant growth in home-based/remote working and increased demand for IT services, has 
meant that IT professionals employed in the education sector to manage the IT networks and other 
systems in education organisations, have been tempted away from their roles, so threatening the 
delivery capacity and reliability of these organisations.

The knock-on effect of this is that the education sector sometimes cannot recruit or retain the staff 
needed to deliver learning programmes in the very subject areas that are sought after by local 
employers.

Energy and Green Renewable

State of Play:
Gloucestershire is in the top percentile of counties in the UK where recruitment is rising in the 
renewables sector. (Emsi)

Training and skills providers need greater guidance from apprenticeship, awarding and sector bodies 
and more flexible, increased funding from DfE to enable them to:

 Adjust existing qualifications and training to incorporate more sustainable and ‘green’ skills
 Deliver new ‘green’ apprenticeships and technical qualifications that meet the rapidly 

changing needs of the sector and other aligned sectors (e.g. construction, engineering, etc.)

Skills Needs:
Currently, there is insufficient formal training available within the county to fulfil demand. 
Nationally, the CiTB has estimated that to meet the Net Zero 2050 goals, the following training and 
recruitment needs will have to be tackled: 
• Hydrogen boilers – retraining for 120,000 gas engineers (1-2 days)

Page 51



Page 22 of 54

• Heat pumps – 60,000 new workers, 15,000 per year
• Building fabric – 30,000 per year
• Heat networks – 9,500 per year

It was reported at the Sixth Carbon Budget in December 2020 “It is unlikely that the market will 
develop prerequisite skills in time, potentially resulting in poor quality installations. Government 
intervention, working closely with installers and others in the private sector and with local 
government is required, to ensure the skills employers need are available at the required scale and 
on a timely basis”.  

Strengths and opportunities:
Over the last year there has been a 100% increase in unique job postings within the Green economy 
which demonstrates Gloucestershire’s pivotal role within the country. Within the Local industrial 
Strategy (LIS), GFirst LEP is ensuring the sustainability and Net Zero agendas are being progressed 
through:
• Alignment with the Gloucestershire Sustainable Energy Strategy
• Ambition to be the Greenest County nationally
• Ambition to lead nationally on decarbonisation of heat
• Capacity within the building retrofit supply chain identified as a risk

We need to create and deliver high-quality, local training programmes, utilising the expertise of 
several partner organisations. Part of the challenge in this is getting clarity over which skills are 
needed and ensuring they are built into existing and emerging qualifications. This work requires the 
leadership of the Green Jobs Taskforce and the Energy Systems Catapult, as well as local training 
providers and employers working together to share needs, understanding and plan delivery.

All the colleges and universities operating in the County are keen to support the ‘green’ and Net Zero 
agenda and several are undertaking reviews of their own learning provision and their own business 
practices to further support this agenda.

The Active Building Centre (ABC) is a £20m Catapult funded organisation, supported by the 10 
leading UK universities; Swansea, Cardiff, Bath, Loughborough, Birmingham, Sheffield, Nottingham, 
Imperial College, University College, Newcastle.
It is a centre of excellence working to accelerate the UK’s drive towards net-zero carbon by 
transforming the way buildings are powered and heated. ABC have built a team of dynamic, 
innovative thinkers and doers who are passionate about applying new ideas and fresh perspectives 
to solve some of the biggest problems facing the world today and drive lasting societal, political and 
environmental change.  They recently held a COP26 Gloucestershire event on the run up to the 
national event, which reviewed business case studies, challenges and exciting opportunities for 
Gloucestershire businesses within the green energy sector.

The One Public Estate retrofit project being led by Stroud District Council will enable the sharing or 
lessons learned with other local authorities and stakeholders.

Health and social care

Please note that Business West has been contracted to research and report on the skills needs of 
this sector as part of the Department for Education (DfE) Local Skills Improvement Plan (LSIP) 
Trailblazer. This research will provide more detail and can be found at 
https://www.businesswest.co.uk/local-skills-improvement-plan-lsip-west-england-plus 

Page 52

https://www.businesswest.co.uk/local-skills-improvement-plan-lsip-west-england-plus


Page 23 of 54

Skills for Care produces key workforce intelligence which local authorities can use to gain insight on 
their local workforce trends. 

This workforce intelligence is fed by the Adult Social Care Workforce Data Set (ASC-WDS), a data 
collection service commissioned and funded by DHSC. 

EU exit and the Covid-19 pandemic have combined to increase the already existing high demand for 
health and social care staff. Demand is expected to grow further in the next few years and local 
provision needs to keep pace with this. We will work with One Gloucestershire to better understand 
their workforce development needs and, where possible, support the work with skills providers to 
meet these needs.

The Covid pandemic has also highlighted the mental health and wellbeing needs of many people. 
There are considerable numbers of mental health job vacancies.  

The sector has had success through a ‘values-based’ approach to recruitment and has developed a 
care certificate for those newly recruited to the sector and which consists of 15 minimum standards 
that need to be met. 

Skills needs:

 Digital / technology 
 User centred / personalised care 
 Promoting independence / enablement (not doing ‘to’ / for but ‘with’)
 Knowledge of safeguarding, dementia, mental health, learning disabilities and autism 
 Effective and compassionate communication and collaboration skills are essential

Page 53

https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/adult-social-care-workforce-data/Workforce-intelligence/Home.aspx
https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/adult-social-care-workforce-data/ASC-WDS/Discover-the-Adult-Social-Care-Workforce-Data-Set.aspx


Page 24 of 54

 Increasingly social care staff need basic clinical skills, particularly to spot signs of 
deterioration and liaise effectively with NHS colleagues

Strengths and opportunities
University of Gloucestershire (UoG) and University of West of England (UWE) have both developed 
nursing training programmes in the County and UoG’s plans to deliver programmes in its new Kings 
Square Campus (previously the Debenhams store) in Gloucester will provide opportunities to further 
strengthen training provision for the local NHS Trusts and social care providers. UoG’s BSC in Nursing 
is approved by the Nursing and Midwifery Council and offers both on-campus learning at Oxstalls 
Campus in Gloucester and a blended learning option on location with an NHS ‘Practice Pod’ in a 
number of locations.

Hartpury College and Hartpury University, whilst providing routes into elite sport, many students 
and graduates progress into careers in therapy, nutrition and wellbeing. 

Retail

State of Play:
Just 4 – 5% of workers in areas of the economy hardest hit by the pandemic, like retail and, were 
undertaking re-skilling in 2019.

Staff shortages in physical retail are partly the result of EU workers returning home prior to EU Exit 
and not returning once the Covid pandemic took hold.  This was compounded by some retail 
workers on furlough choosing to move into other sectors.
Fashion retailers are understood to be some of the hardest hit, followed closely by small 
independent retailers which employ under 1000 staff.

“There is already a skills shortage within certain new areas like user experience and e-commerce 
development. We need to ask ourselves, how do we attract the IT crowd away from the usual routes 
to have a long and successful career with a fast-paced retailer? How do we train for potential roles 
that don’t even exist yet? That’s the next challenge.”
Seth Davies, senior HR officer at Next Group 

Skills Needs: 
Digital and cyber skills – These are needed by smaller retailers especially, with online trading a key 
way for retailers’ businesses to survive. 

Strengths and opportunities: 
Helping local leaders develop skills and capacity, alongside people who have different and 
complementary experience and skills. This includes people from different sectors and different types 
of organisation. 
Supporting local councils with how to engage and build a collaborative vision with community 
organisations and entrepreneurs. 
Smaller retailers especially, getting on line in order to survive and offering bespoke training for this.
Post-Covid recovery grant monies have helped local independents to survive with new shops 
opening whilst some larger chains have collapsed.
Getting people to re-engage with retail - “We have a massive marketing plan, this year is a profit 
recovery year, exciting things set to come. I can see a rejuvenation coming as people re-engage with 
retail.” Martin Bundy John Lewis Cheltenham.

Page 54

https://www.glos.ac.uk/information/knowledge-base/blended-learning-for-adult-nursing/


Page 25 of 54

Tourism & Visitor Economy

State of Play:
In 2019 the Tourism & Visitor Economy industry was worth £966 million a year to Gloucestershire.
There has been relatively little collaborative working due, in part, to there being no overarching 
Destination Marketing Organisation (DMO) and the recognition of the wider value that can be 
gained by working with partner industries such as retail, hospitality and community engagement.
83% of local residents agreed or strongly agreed that tourists visiting Gloucestershire bring benefits 
for their community.
Pre-Pandemic around 850 businesses in the formal visitor economy employed almost 13,000 people 
in Gloucestershire.

Skills needs:
Skills in hospitality and tourism management.
Digital and cyber skills – there is a need for greater understanding of digital applications and training 
for hospitality businesses to get online.
Telephone customer service skills and basic employability skills for entrants to the sector.

Strengths and opportunities:
The creation of Visit Gloucestershire provides a new approach to partnership working in the County 
and an umbrella organisation to develop new partnerships, to support existing strategic 
management organisations (SMO), destination marketing organisations (DMO), and local destination 
organisations (LDO).

Tourism Strategy – This has been developed to support long-term sustainable growth, forecasting 
that visitor spending will grow 17% over the 2019 baseline, reaching £1.13 billion by 2030, 
supporting the creation of some 2,200 jobs and 150 new businesses. It supports partner 
organisations to deliver on 5 outcomes. It will also enable the engagement and education of 
communities and businesses of the value of the local visitor pound.

There are opportunities to develop industry-led catering and hospitality training to train chefs and 
others. This follows disinvestment by local colleges over some years, partly resulting from a lack of 
investment from the sector when it had access to EU and non-EU migrant workers.

Local employers, working with the Careers Hub and careers services could maximise linkages 
between educational establishments and the sector, highlight the wide range of employment 
opportunities in the sector and illustrate their value as quality career options.

Transport

State of Play:
As widely reported, there was a significantly increased demand for Large/Heavy Goods Vehicle (LGV 
& HGV) drivers in 2021. This has been acknowledged as a wider historic problem of trying to fill 
shortages within the industry over many years.  The combination of the pandemic and EU Exit has 
further exacerbated the shortage within the industry as overseas drivers have now returned to their 
place of birth, or have re-evaluated their chosen career with potentially better working conditions to 
be found in other sectors.  
 
Latest figures suggest that Gloucestershire places itself 8% above the national average in the 
availability of driver’s jobs being advertised which is a 1.2% increase on the previous year.  This 

Page 55



Page 26 of 54

supports the theory that although there is a year on year increase in drivers jobs available within the 
county, there may well be a deficit left by existing drivers leaving the industry.

Gender breakdown for the industry: 98.8 % males; 1.2 % females.  

Age breakdown: 34.5% aged 45 to 54 years; 24.4% aged 55 to 64 years (2018) This may go some way 
to explain why some drivers have decided to retire or seek alternative less demanding employment.  

The largest employers of drivers in the county are the dedicated freight transport companies (60% of 
all LGV driving jobs). 

The average wage for Drivers in Gloucestershire is £11.43 per hour compared with the national 
average of £11.97.

In 2020, within Gloucestershire the Districts of Tewkesbury and Stroud advertise more LGV driving 
jobs than the remaining districts advertising 885 and 798 respectively against Forest of Dean at 560 
and Cheltenham at 524.  This is in part due to the preferences for distribution companies to locate 
their businesses for easier access to major road networks. 

Local training organisations suggest that the closure of the Large Goods testing centre in Gloucester 
impacted negatively on HGV training in the County because this necessitated travel outside the 
county for LGV testing, so increasing training and assessment costs.

The cost of training and attaining a licence is estimated at between £250 and £300 for a LGV licence 
and driving courses can range from £600- £1924 (2021). 

Feedback from local logistics firms indicates that long hours and working conditions have made 
driving jobs less attractive compared with other sectors, as the commercial demands of logistics 
organisations often result in drivers spending longer time behind the wheel than planned. 

Strengths and Opportunities:
Local training providers have the capacity and will to react quickly and successfully to local training 
needs. An example of this is: 

As a direct result of the national HGV driver shortage the DfE launched a call for training 
organisations to deliver HGV Class 1 training courses under the Governments Plan for Jobs 
‘Bootcamp’ initiative. This is where unemployed individuals can receive free intensive training to 
qualify as an LGV/HGV driver.  Betaris and Gloucestershire College were successful in securing a 
contract to deliver this training in Gloucestershire in 2021-22. The delivery model for four courses is 
10 days classroom learning and 5 days practical training and capacity is 56 learners. Once the DfE-
funded ‘bootcamps’ have been delivered, Betaris will be offering 3 courses for HGV training using 
Gloucestershire College’s Adult Education Budget (AEB) funding delivered over a 5 week period April 
to June 2022.

Page 56



Page 27 of 54

Section 5: Issues and opportunities 
highlighted by local authorities

This section identifies the main issues and opportunities highlighted by the local authorities in the 
County. Through their work with local businesses, residents, in planning and place-shaping, they 
have highlighted a number of issues and opportunities to be addressed to support the 
employment and skills support within the County.

Summary

Issues identified by local authorities include: recruitment challenges for them as employers; rural 
transport challenges

Opportunities identified by local authorities include: Social Value, Section 106 and ‘Anchor 
Institution’ opportunities; potential of the STEP Fusion project; recruitment; joining up local 
authority-led and other local economic and skills plans; ‘Green’/sustainability skills; Traditional and 
heritage skills; Better linkages with and understanding of local employers and SMEs; Opportunities 
to maximise Growth Hub engagement   

Issues, opportunities and key themes

Issues:

Recruitment challenges are affecting local authorities as employers

 There are increased recruitment challenges in professional public sector roles such as 
planning, environmental health and legal. This is presenting a negative impact on other 
sectors in the hospitality sector (around food premises inspections), and planning (related to 
the retrofit sector). 

 Local authorities are also facing recruitment challenges in roles ranging from transport 
planning, social workers, procurement specialists, social care practitioners, highways senior 
managers, SHE Advisors (Safety, Health and Environment), Educational Psychiatrists and 
drivers.

 A better understanding of available early career and entry pathways into public sector 
organisations.

 Employers are reporting recruitment challenges to local authorities that echo those 
expressed in the sector snapshots in section 4 of this strategy. These recruitment challenges 
include the need for transport, childcare, flexible working patterns, etc.

 Local authorities reflected the importance of certain sectors for their work with residents: 
health, social care, transport and logistics.

 Recruiting and retaining local talent is challenging, especially with a proportion of 18-21 year 
old students migrating out of Gloucestershire to other universities and not returning.

Rural transport

 In some parts of Gloucestershire, transport links are poor to and from rural areas which have 
a direct impact on recruitment and skills for rurally-based employers. 

Page 57



Page 28 of 54

Opportunities

Social Value, Section 106 and ‘Anchor Institution’ opportunities to maximise Employment & Skills 
benefits

There are strategic plans for the construction of housing and infrastructure in Gloucestershire and 
these bring with them significant employment and skills opportunities.

Housing - In total the strategic plans in Gloucestershire identify the need for a total of 61,500 new 
homes to 2031. 

M5 Junction 10

Gloucestershire County Council have been successful in their bid to Highways England for funding to 
upgrade Junction 10 of the M5. The agreement is for £250million with a delivery by October 2024. 
This funding will be used to improve access to and from the motorway northbound and southbound 
to a new link road into Cheltenham and will be critical in the delivery of housing and employment 
growth in this area.

M5 Junction 9 / A46

Options are currently being considered for a new dual carriageway between the M5 near 
Tewkesbury and Teddington Hands roundabout and associated works to M5 junction 9. The scheme 
would improve regional/national north-south road connectivity as well as solving long standing local 
traffic issues along the A46 corridor. The scheme will also unlock transport capacity to support the 
delivery of the Tewkesbury Garden Town.

A417 Missing Link

The planned £500 million upgrade of the A417, a key route linking the South West and Midlands, will 
see a single lane stretch of carriageway between the Brockworth bypass and Cowley roundabout in 
Gloucestershire, upgraded to dual carriageway.

Golden Valley Development

This West Cheltenham strategic allocation site was identified to deliver 1,100 homes and 45 ha of 
employment land and will include the development of a major cyber park to host businesses in the 
cyber and digital supply chain. https://www.goldenvalleyuk.com/ 

Tewkesbury Garden Town

The Tewkesbury/Ashchurch area was awarded Garden Town status in 2019 based upon a potential 
development of 10,195 homes and approximately 100 hectares of employment land. 
https://www.tewkesburygardentown.co.uk/ 

Gloucester City Centre

Gloucester City Centre is undergoing significant redevelopment, including the construction of a 
digital quarter and The Forum providing 125,000 sq ft of office space, a shared workspace club, an 
innovation hub designed for emerging cyber businesses and incubator businesses, a 116-bedroom 
four-star hotel, a 9,000 sq ft gym, restaurants, shops, bars and cathedral view apartments, together 
with a multi-storey car park, alongside over one acre of public realm and landscaping work. 

Page 58

https://www.goldenvalleyuk.com/
https://www.tewkesburygardentown.co.uk/


Page 29 of 54

https://www.forumdigital.co.uk/ University of Gloucestershire has purchased the Debenhams store 
close to the site of the Forum and this will provide further learning opportunities in the city centre.

The extensive pipeline of housing, transport infrastructure and regeneration projects in 
Gloucestershire provides significant opportunities for local authorities and other anchor institutions 
to build Social Value and Section 106 requirements into major contracts and work with developers 
to ensure that apprenticeships, careers inspiration and support, jobs and skills development are all 
integrated for the benefit of local residents and businesses. 

Potential of the STEP Fusion project for Employment and Skills opportunities

As part of the drive to decarbonise the UK’s energy supply, Gloucestershire is bidding to establish 
the UK’s first commercial fusion prototype utilising sites at Oldbury on Severn and Berkeley. Fusion is 
detailed in the Government’s Energy White paper and Ten Point Plan for a Green Industrial 
Revolution 

and Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production (STEP) is the preferred option for a prototype fusion 
power plant, with the Government having already committed £222m investment into STEP. Key local 
partners including Gloucestershire County Council, GFirst LEP, Magnox, Nuclear South West, South 
Glos and Stroud College, Stroud District Council and the Western Gateway are working closely with 
the UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) and other organisations to position Oldbury and Berkeley 
as the most viable sites for the STEP project. A final decision is expected by December 2022 and 
should the bid be successful, the STEP project could generate significant investment, employment 
and skills opportunities in the County.

Anchor Institutions and their impact on local employment and skills

‘Anchor institutions’ are large organisations with a long-term commitment to an area. Beyond their 
impact through their purchasing power and building Social Value into their contracts, anchor 
institutions can have significant positive effects on the employment and skills landscape of an area. 
This includes:

Further explanations and proposals for anchor institutions in Gloucestershire can be found in the 
2021 ‘Sources of Strength Report by Gloucestershire’s Director of Public Health (Employment p 9-12)

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gloucestershire-county-council-news/news-november-
2021/public-health-report-puts-spotlight-on-key-role-played-by-local-organisations/ 

Recruitment

 There are opportunities to promote the wide range of careers that are available within local 
authorities along with what total reward packages looks like i.e. flexible working, pension, 
wellbeing, impact the work has on the community, etc. in addition to salary.

 There is potential for the Careers Hub and Employment & Skills Hub to help with the longer-
term recruitment needs of key sectors and local authorities in the County. Initial work 
supporting the Cyber and Digital and the Health & Social Care sectors in 2022-24 will help 
inform what is possible, what works and the resource implications of this work. This in turn 
will enable models to be developed and adjusted for the needs of local authorities and other 
sectors.

Joining up local authority-led and other local economic and skills plans

Page 59

https://www.forumdigital.co.uk/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gloucestershire-county-council-news/news-november-2021/public-health-report-puts-spotlight-on-key-role-played-by-local-organisations/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gloucestershire-county-council-news/news-november-2021/public-health-report-puts-spotlight-on-key-role-played-by-local-organisations/


Page 30 of 54

 The local authorities all have local economic strategic plans either in place or in 
development. These provide opportunities for joined-up working in the County. Where 
possible this skills strategy has taken these into account and linked with these District 
strategies.

 Several local authorities have had/continue to facilitate local economic recovery working 
groups. Again, these provide opportunities for joined-up working in the County and there is 
membership/regular dialogue between these groups and the GFirst LEP and GCC 
Employment & Skills Hub and teams.

 The Local Government Association’s (LGA’s) People and Places strategy offers opportunities 
for greater collaborative working locally.

 There is a strong emphasis to raise the profile of localities as attractive and appealing places 
to work, as well as being hospitality and tourism areas.

‘Green’/sustainability skills

 More work is needed to understand the emerging ‘Green sector’ and the skills and jobs that 
will be needed so that local and national priorities for action are based on intelligence and 
evidence. The One Public Estate project being led and delivered by Stroud District Council 
will generate lessons learned for retrofit work in the County that can be shared across other 
local authorities.

Traditional and heritage skills

 The combination of heritage skills such as dry stone walling, slate roofing, boat building and 
restoration through T Neilsen and Company at Gloucester Docks, and other companies and 
training providers could offer opportunities for a ‘heritage skills centre/network; in the 
County. This may link with or could build on the work to support the agriculture, rural and 
food business sector being done by the Royal Agricultural University (RAU), Hartpury College 
and Hartpury University, and others.

Better linkages with and understanding of local employers and SMEs

 Most councils reported an increased understanding of locally-based employers they had not 
previously engaged with. This was a direct result of their work with local businesses through 
the Covid grant funding processes.

 Several local authorities highlighted the need to ensure linkages to wider county projects 
e.g. the cyber developments in Cheltenham, are inclusive and generate benefits for 
residents and businesses across the County.

Opportunities to maximise Growth Hub engagement 

 Several local authorities highlighted the strengths of the Gloucestershire Growth Hub 
Network providing a physical as well as a digital presence and suggested that they and other 
stakeholders could do more to increase local employers’ awareness, access to and uptake of 
business advice on a local level. Some authorities suggested that there were opportunities to 
promote apprenticeships via this route and that more support was needed for micro 
businesses and SMEs to enable them to take on apprentices, and understand T-levels. 

Page 60



Page 31 of 54

Section 6: Employment and skills schemes 
supported in Gloucestershire and 
opportunities for improvements
Apprenticeships –Despite some ongoing frustrations from some businesses, 61% of business leaders 
(nationally) agree that the apprenticeship levy introduced by the UK government to encourage 
greater investment in work-based training should help to reduce the skills shortage in the next five 
years. (OU Business Barometer)

Apprenticeships starts overview

The apprenticeship market in Gloucestershire was significantly impacted by the pandemic. Data 
indicates that at the end of April 2021 there were 8,848 apprenticeship starts between August 2020 
and April 2021. 

In terms of Districts, Gloucester saw the highest number of apprenticeship starts with 2,472 in that 
time, followed by Stroud. 

Age - 23% of the total number of people starting an apprenticeship programme were under the age 
of 19 years, 28% aged 19-24 years and 49% over the age of 25 years.

Gender - 55% of the total starts of apprenticeship programmes were female which follows national 
trends, with the highest uptake in advanced apprenticeships. With higher level apprenticeships, 55% 
of the total number of starts were taken by female participants. Intermediate level apprenticeships 
the split was 57% female participants and male 43%. Advanced level apprenticeships the split was 
53% female participants and male 47%. 

Switch to online and blended apprenticeship training delivery

Apprentices who started their apprenticeship either prior to or during the pandemic have 
experienced not only the change in the way they work, but also in the way that their apprenticeship 
training has had to be delivered. The move from face-to-face delivery to that of completely remote 
delivery through virtual technologies has had positive and negative impacts. Apprentices and 
training providers have found delivery of practical training elements more challenging than delivery 
in sectors/job roles where the tasks and training are more administrative.

There have been some real successes around blended training delivery and in the recovery from the 
pandemic period, we want to ensure that the effective use of technology is retained, especially 
when this method can save time, lower carbon footprint and also enhance ongoing use of 
technology by apprentices and employers. However, there are still elements of apprenticeships that 
apprentices wish to take place through face-to-face interactions, not only with their workplace 
mentors but also with their trainers/tutors and other apprentices alike.  

Employers

Page 61



Page 32 of 54

The option for employers to take individuals onto the Government’s Kickstart programme, 
introduced in October 2020, had an impact on apprenticeship starts as an initial entry route into 
employment. The challenges of remote working, lockdowns and uncertainties around business 
sustainability were also factors in the decline in apprenticeship starts. Where some employers used 
this time to upskill their existing staff, the pressures on public sector services also had a negative 
impact on apprenticeship provisions, especially in health & social care, as well as schools’ 
workforces.

Health and Social Care apprenticeships in Gloucestershire have been hit hard by the pandemic and 
we have seen training providers pull out of delivery completely, which is of concern employers in 
this sector, but also more widely across the Integrated Care System (ICS) and Proud to Care. 

Funding

Funding for apprenticeship training providers has mainly remained constant over the last year, with 
few movements within the funding bands for the apprenticeship standards. 

One of the most significant changes is that all employers wishing to use apprenticeship funding now 
need to register on the Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS), which has caused a number of 
challenges for employers wishing to engage, existing employers offering apprenticeships and 
ultimately apprentices. One of these challenges has been the pooled PAYE that some employers find 
themselves in, notably schools. This has caused an issue whereby the school cannot then set up their 
own account as they need their own individual PAYE code, which then has an impact on the training 
provider not being able to access the funding. In some circumstances, employers have had to engage 
with an Apprenticeship Training Agency (ATA) to then employ the apprentice. This has been raised 
with HMRC and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) who have been supportive and 
continue to, try to find a resolution to this.

Apprenticeship Levy transfer to other employers has been very successful in the last 12-18 months 
with some large employers in Gloucestershire exhausting their 25% of transfer allocation supporting 
other employers within Gloucestershire, by funding the training in full for them. We are keen to see 
further expansion of Apprenticeship Levy transfer in Gloucestershire from more large employers to 
their supply chains and local SMEs.

An example of effective Apprenticeship Levy transfer is the collaboration of the ICS partners 
(Gloucestershire County Council, Gloucestershire NHS Trust, Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS 
Foundation Trust, CCG) and supporting apprentices and employers across Gloucestershire. This 
resulted in these partner organisations transferring apprenticeship funding to the value of £340,000 
in the six months between April 2021-September 2021. 

T-Levels

Why introduce T Levels?

T-levels were detailed in the ‘Skills & Post-16 Education Bill’ as part of the Further Education system 
review of learning and skills provision. They are being introduced with the aim of simplifying the 
over-complex system of technical education and ensure the skills which students gain meet the 
needs of a 21st century workforce.

Wider qualifications review

As at July 2018, there were over 4,000 Level 3 qualifications eligible for public funding with many 
courses available in the same subject areas, including over 200 different engineering qualifications. 

Page 62



Page 33 of 54

Many courses have been judged as not adequately equipping students with the skills employers 
need now and those which will be needed and are evolving. The existing qualifications landscape is 
confusing for students, parents, and employers.

What T-levels consist of

T-Levels are two-year vocational programme for 16 – 19 year olds, which follow GCSEs and sit 
alongside A level and apprenticeship pathways. T-Levels are based on the same standards as 
apprenticeships, designed by employers. They are a mix of classroom-based learning and an on-the-
job industry placement, (approximately a 45-day work placement over two years). The total duration 
to complete a T-Level is approx. 1,800 hours of learning.

English and mathematics form essential components of T-levels, with students required to achieve 
either a Level 2 Functional Skills or GCSE Grade 4 to achieve the full T Level.

One T-Level is the equivalent to 3 A levels and can be achieved at pass, merit, distinction or 
distinction*.

T Levels approved for delivery – phase 1

The first tranche launched in September 2020: (32 education providers selected nationally) 
delivering: Design, surveying and planning for construction; Digital production, design and 
development; Education and childcare. Cirencester College is a trailblazer provider in 
Gloucestershire.

The second tranche of delivery commenced September 2021: (74 education providers nationally) 
delivering: Building services engineering for construction; Onsite construction; Science; Health; 
Healthcare science; Digital business services; Digital support and services. Gloucestershire College 
joined tranche two.

Remaining T Levels to be introduced in 2022-23

Accounting; Agriculture, land management and production; Animal care and management; Catering; 
Craft and design; Design and development for engineering and manufacturing; Finance; Hair, beauty 
and aesthetics; Legal; Maintenance, installation and repair for engineering and manufacturing; 
Management and administration; Engineering, manufacturing, processing and control; Media, 
broadcast and production (125 education providers nationally).

Major Challenges in introducing T-levels

The need for substantial industry placements (45 days) and content that closely mirrors industry 
standard practice places a strong emphasis on effective links between education and employers and 
the awareness, understanding and support of local employers. Clarity is needed on the future of 
BTECs and other Level 3 qualifications through the qualification review so that the role of T Levels 
can be clarified. It will take time for T-Levels to become accepted by universities and employers as 
having parity with A-Levels. This in turn increases the importance of careers ‘guidance’ to inform FE, 
HE, and Apprenticeship choices pre and post GCSE. There are substantial teacher training and 
professional development implications for training providers seeking to deliver T-Levels. Finally, how 
T-Levels will meet the needs of students with additional needs is not yet clear e.g. those with pre-L2 
functional skills seeking to gain full T-levels.

How we are supporting the implementation of T-Levels in Gloucestershire

Page 63



Page 34 of 54

 Investment in skills capital projects that support the implementation of T-Levels e.g. in the 
Digital Skills centre at Cirencester College

 The pilot of the Gloucestershire Employment Charter includes the industry placements and 
employer links needed to successfully deliver T-Levels

 Promotion of T-Levels to local employers
 Promotion of T-Levels as alternatives to A-Levels for young people via the Careers Hub and 

the Employment & Skills Hub, and encouraging schools to implement their Baker Clause 
requirements by enabling apprenticeship and T-Level providers to promote their 
programmes to students

Skills that support individuals to achieve their potential

Inclusive Employment 

 23% of disabled people in the UK aged 21 – 64 hold a degree as their highest qualification 
compared to 39.7% of non-disabled people

 15.1% of disabled people hold no qualifications compared to 5.4% of non-disabled people
 52.1% of disabled people are in work compared to 81.3% of non-disabled people
 Disabled people average wellbeing is poorer than non-disabled people – 4.47/10 compared 

to 2.9/10 – happiness, feeling worthwhile and life satisfaction
 Having a poor-quality job or being unemployed can directly affect your physical or mental 

health
 Growing up in a workless household means you are more likely to become NEET and/or long 

term unemployed
 Care Leavers are more likely to be NEET than their peers due to a lack of qualifications and 

support to find a job
 There is a direct link between poverty and poor health

Addressing employment inequalities experienced by high risk groups means working with 
employers, families, carers and professionals to develop the skills of individuals to allow them to 
fulfil their career ambitions.  This requires looking beyond qualifications to provide bespoke 
packages of support to encourage and develop skills, attitude and capacity.

Working together in Gloucestershire to address the holistic employment and skills needs of those 
who are at risk of long-term unemployment is essential to ensure sustainable employment.  
Addressing the environment around the individual requires collaboration and an understanding of 
the challenges both individuals and employers face and working together to overcome these.  

Working with young people to develop their skills and understanding of inclusive workplaces will 
ensure that future generations of those who have disabilities, are care-experienced or live in areas 
of deprivation have access to the same opportunities as others.  Appropriate skills provision needs to 
be available for everyone regardless of their ability with acknowledgement that people have 
different aspirations, experience and capacity, this will in turn help us to develop workplaces that 
are inclusive and encourage people to flourish and live more fulfilling and healthier lives.

Challenge: There is competition between programmes and ensuring individuals are directed to the 
right programme for them

Department of Work & Pensions (DWP) Programmes

Page 64



Page 35 of 54

There are a number of DWP Programmes available, all targeting different groups, with different 
timelines but similar content.  The main challenge experienced by providers and partners is the 
blurred lines between programmes and how they interact with locally developed provision.  Job 
Centre Plus (JCP) Work Coaches have limited time with claimants and depending on which 
programme is prioritised by DWP/Jobcentre Plus, referrals to other programmes can be affected.   

All DWP Programmes strive for one outcome – paid, sustainable employment.  DWP and locally 
developed initiatives like Forwards and GEM all compete for resource and market share.  Referral 
organisations are not clear of the offers and whether participation in multiple programmes is 
allowed.  It is essential that to help people develop the employability skills they need, which are 
appropriate to their capacity and desired occupation, they get to the right programmes for them.  If 
not, individuals’ employment outcomes could take longer or not happen at all.

JCP Work Coaches do not always have time or the wider awareness of provision outside of DWP-
funded programmes to consider all options when deciding who to make a referral to and choice is 
sometimes influenced by their managers in order to meet DWP priorities and targets set at the 
highest level. The emphasis is often therefore on the provider to determine if their programme is the 
most appropriate.

Access to Work is a programme that helps people with disabilities who are moving into or already in 
work, providing practical support including transport, job coaching, assistive technology etc.  It can 
also be used for a short period of time for people who are in a work placement or a Supported 
Internship.  This can provide support for people to learn new work skills or identify their skills needs 
but it cannot be used for voluntary work.  This means that people seeking voluntary work to increase 
their confidence and skills do not have access to the same level of support as those seeking paid 
work. This is an issue, particularly for young people transitioning from education with a lack of 
support available to allow them to take up such placements.  

Local Provision

Gloucestershire has a number of local initiatives which help people who are furthest from the labour 
market or at risk of long-term unemployment to develop their employability skills.  

A) AIM Supported Internships are an employability-focussed education programme for young 
people with Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) and provide them with opportunities 
to develop their employability skills in real work place settings.

B) The Forwards Supported Employment Service managed and delivered by Gloucestershire 
county Council (GCC) provides support for;

 People with health conditions or disabilities including mental health
 Young people who are leaving or have left care settings
 Young people who are NEET and disengaged from the education system

C) The Gloucestershire GEM Project provides support for people furthest from the labour 
market to move into or closer to education, employment or training.

In all cases the programmes support people to identify career choices and develop their knowledge 
and skills to achieve their aspirations.

The main challenges are similar to the DWP providers i.e. crossover with other programmes. In the 
case of GEM there can be clashes with funding streams requiring individuals to choose to be on one 

Page 65



Page 36 of 54

programme and requiring communication with DWP and the provider to ensure there is no conflict 
with benefit conditionality.

Meeting the challenges of competing programmes and effective referral to the right programme 
for an individual

Short-term - The Programme Interdependencies Group set up by Gloucestershire County Council 
(GCC) brings together all employment and adult skills providers, working together to share 
knowledge and, where appropriate, referrals.  The Group has produced a sharable document which 
to help referral organisations understand eligibility criteria, referral routes and what other provision 
could add value to their customers’ journeys.

Longer-term – Existing local employment support programmes have been funded through a 
combination of DWP, European Social Fund (ESF) and Lottery funding. With the UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund (UKSPF) likely to include employment& skills priorities and opportunities to bid for funding, the 
lessons learned above should be incorporated into future bids and commissioning of local and 
national provision.

Employers are central to success

Employers are key to the success of any inclusive employment and skills strategy.  Understanding 
their needs, ensuring people have the right skills to do the jobs required and asking employers to 
review how diversity within the workforce can benefit their businesses are essential. The next step if 
for us to work with employers to build business cases for inclusive employment around the 
recruitment of new staff and the retention of existing employees.

By encouraging employers to work with local employment and skills providers in a collaborative way 
we can design and deliver provision tailored to help people who face challenges with securing 
employment whilst meeting the employers’ needs.  

Job Carving highlights how an individual’s skills can be utilised at work by analysing the job and the 
jobs of other staff and creating a position for an individual which meets the employers needs and 
where the individual’s skills are utilised effectively.  Outside of supported employment this approach 
is not widely used as employers usually create a job description and look for someone to fulfil most/ 
all of the requirements.  By analysing the workforce, the need and identifying gaps we can open up 
more opportunities for people with limited capacity and create more inclusive workplaces.

Wage incentives have been used in Europe to “encourage” employers to take on disabled people 
but sustainability can become a problem as some employers do not continue the employment once 
any incentive ceases.  However, paid work placements like those secured through the Kickstart 
scheme can offer employers the opportunity to take on people at no risk for a short period of time 
to allow them to understand the skills of an individual in their workplace. 

Managing employers’ expectations of young people in the Kickstart scheme proved challenging. 
Some employers who offered opportunities expected young people to be experienced and qualified, 
missing the point of the scheme which was to develop a young person’s employability skills to help 
them move onto a sustainable career path.  Kickstart was an ideal opportunity to support those 
young people at risk of long-term unemployment, however some employers’ expectations meant 
that these groups were still overlooked. 

Page 66



Page 37 of 54

The more people with disabilities and other challenges we can get into work the easier it will 
become to increase the number of inclusive workplaces.  We are keen for inclusive employers to 
work with us and:

 talk to other employers about their experiences
 act as role models for other employers and people with disabilities, Care Leavers, people 

from BME communities with the aspiration to achieve
 provide peer to peer support 

The Forwards Kickstart trainee was responsible for leading sessions with other Kickstarter trainees in 
the GCC Gateway to help identify any areas of good practices or challenges.  Supported in the 
background he was responsible for talking to other trainees to find out their experiences on a peer 
to peer basis.

Work Experience

Both paid and unpaid work experience opportunities are essential to help build the confidence and 
skills of those who have additional challenges in the workplace. They enable individuals to ‘get a foot 
in the door’ and start conversations about their skills and qualities with an employer.

Accessing meaningful work experience placements whilst in education is a challenge for many young 
people with disabilities and those young people who are disengaged from education do not have the 
opportunity to have meaningful conversations about career pathways.  This means they start their 
working life at a disadvantage.  Good quality work experience is essential and helps:

 Young people to understand their capabilities, skills gaps and the business sector as well as 
providing practical experience of work-related skills and a clear educational route where 
appropriate.

 Employers to identify how they can support young people especially with challenges in the 
labour market and learn about how simple reasonable adjustments can be made to 
accommodate a broad range of abilities

Examples of good practice:

Forwards work experience placements and 30/30 Challenge

Of the first 10 disabled people placed in work experience placements with Forwards, 8 secured paid 
employment with their host employer.  

The Forwards 30/30 Challenge helped a number of young people with disabilities secure work 
awareness sessions with local employers.  Employers were keen to engage as this was a “minimal 
commitment” however many employers went on to offer work experience placements to young 
people and some young people even secured part time work.

Apprenticeship and work experience challenges: 

 Apprenticeships present barriers for young people who cannot achieve a Level 2 
Competency.  A significant number of young people with capability to undertake an 
apprenticeship lose out because “Inclusive” or “Supported” Apprenticeships are not really 
understood by providers so they are not offered.  These allow a young person with Entry 
Level 3 capacity for English and Maths to take part provided they can achieve a Level 2 
competency.  They were launched some years ago but nationally very few young people 
with limited capacity have been able to take part.  

Page 67



Page 38 of 54

 In Gloucestershire those with Entry Level capacity who have EHCPs are able to take part in 
AIM Supported Internships which offer workplace and college learning but they are part of 
their education programme and unlike apprenticeships they are unpaid.

 Employers have limited capacity and some have to deal with multiple requests from schools, 
colleges and employment support providers, whilst other employers are not contacted at all

 Some employers use the excuse of “Health and Safety” as a reason for not taking on 
someone with a disability and in most cases this is not valid. 

Challenge: Employer engagement

Local businesses and employers are critical to the success of all local and national employment and 
skills initiatives as they provide the job opportunities. There are approx.29,735 businesses in 
Gloucestershire and approx. 89.2% of these are micros (0-9 employees). This creates real challenges 
in terms of co-ordinated communications with employers and employers’ ability to respond to 
support E & S initiatives. 

The complexity and range of initiatives and having so many organisations operating in the local 
employment and skills landscape and engaging employers, means that some employers simply 
disengage, whilst others are not contacted nor aware of the initiatives. Once aware, employers then 
need further understanding and support to actually engage and support these initiatives.

The Gloucestershire Employment Charter pilot and the GCC & GFirst LEP Employment & Skills Hub 
will provide means of engaging employers in a co-ordinated way to enable customers to gain access 
to such things as: careers inspiration talks; work placements (including sustained programmes for T-
levels and degree placements); Internships (including supported internships); Apprenticeships; 
Interview practice; Enterprise projects; ‘Live’ employer projects.

The Gloucestershire Employment Charter Pilot

The Employment Charter pilot is a means of encouraging employers to extend their links with 
careers, education, employment and skills providers to help meet the needs of these providers, their 
learners, and customers to experience meaningful career-inspiring encounters with employers.

It provides a co-ordinated response to employers’ concerns about current workforce and 
recruitment needs, and how to secure/retain future local talent. It is a responsive approach to 
manage and facilitate the support local education and skills providers have requested to increase 
access to the best quality employer engagement and workplace interactions.

The Employment Charter work will be led by GFirst LEP and Gloucestershire County Council and will 
involve working with local employers and several stakeholder organisations to deliver a wide range 
of employer engagement activities, work experience placements, and work-related careers support 
activities. The Charter will underpin and integrate with the work of the Careers & Enterprise 
Company and GFirst Careers Hub.

The Charter will be piloted between January and March 2022 and lessons learned will be used to 
inform a wider roll-out across the County after April 2022. Six schools and one college have been 
selected for the pilot project and findings will include estimates of needs of the schools and college 
for such things as careers talks, enterprise education activities, work placements, and continuing 
professional development for a range of staff, etc. as well as the resources that would be needed to 
deliver the Employment Charter across all the secondary schools, colleges and higher education 
providers in Gloucestershire.

Page 68



Page 39 of 54

Family, peer and community challenges and opportunities

For some young people, their family, peers and community can negatively impact their aspirations 
and employability.  In areas of high unemployment there are also high numbers of young people 
who are NEET.  Young people often take inspiration from those around them and this can work 
positively or negatively.  Working with the whole family in some cases will help to address the low 
aspirations both for the current and future generations. The Covid-19 pandemic saw a significant rise 
in unemployment which increased the probability of more workless households across the County.  
The loss of jobs in some sectors resulted in some adults and young people struggling to understand 
how their skills could transfer to another sector.  Family learning programmes could help to support 
families experiencing unemployment and NEET situations.

Young people who are furthest from the labour market need the support of their families and 
communities to help them engage with provision.  We need to ensure that families can support 
people both young and old when both looking for work and also when they start work.  Without this 
we have found people can struggle so working with the family unit, social workers, teachers and 
others is essential as, particularly in the case of young people, they are influenced by others around 
them.

The importance of the Voluntary and Community Sector in employment and skills

The success of the GEM project has resulted from the VCSE Sector delivering outcomes for people in 
their communities.   The VCSE Sector plays an important part in terms of skills delivery for people 
who are at risk of long-term unemployment.  Often people who are not in touch with Job Centre 
Plus (JCP) will find accessing community organisations easier.  Many GEM participants were referred 
through community organisations that have a wealth of experience to provide support to people 

Page 69



Page 40 of 54

who need it. For example, volunteering and social enterprise opportunities are a valuable way of 
helping to increase employability skills and build confidence.   The value of community-based 
support should not be underestimated so we need to build on the excellent relationships GEM and 
other work has developed with the VCSE Sector and encourage more cross-sector working.

Social enterprises

We have a number of social enterprises in the County providing people at risk of long-term 
unemployment with a much-needed supportive environment to develop their skills.  The Forest 
Upcycling Project, Café 16 and the Grace Network are examples of such projects that provide work 
experience, voluntary and paid work opportunities for people who have complex challenges. These 
and similar organisations have provided many people with their first step into or back into 
employment and support with progression into other jobs.  They promote inclusivity and provide the 
employability and work skills that those who are disengaged need.

Economically Inactive

Another overlooked group are those who are “Economically Inactive”.  Most DWP programmes only 
work with those who are claiming Universal Credit (UC) but there are significantly more people who 
are not on UC or on UC who don’t have the requirement for a work conversation.  Because they are 
not in touch with the Job Centre they may miss out on having the opportunity to discuss potential 
employment.  Many would like to work but they don’t know how to access support.  The 
Gloucestershire GEM Project provides support for people who are furthest from the labour market 
including those who are economically inactive.  Funded by the National Lottery Community Fund 
and European Social Fund, GEM has made a big difference in providing support to people who have 
not engaged with other provision or JCP.  Due to finish in December 2022 there will be a gap which 
will need to be filled by other provision coming on line through other funding sources. 

Business start-up skills and Self Employment

Self-employment, particularly for some of our more disadvantage groups, may be a viable option, 
however this requires promotion of self-employment and specific skills and support for which 
current provision is extremely limited.   Provision tends to be short-term and focused on developing 
a business plan and sourcing finance but there is little support for people during the first year of 
trading when the business is often most at risk.  This sort of support and signposting to available 
provision like Co-Op Futures, GEL, the Growth Hub Network, Innovation Labs, Princes Trust, etc is 
needed, along with what support is offered. 

Entrepreneurial skills taught to young people can have a range of benefits:

 encouraging young people to develop their own business ideas, gain an understanding about 
business which they can take into their first job

 help them to understand the further education pathways they may need to achieve their 
employment or self-employment goals 

 help them identify routes of self-fulfilment beyond the traditional employment routes

Digital and cyber skills

Challenge: Digital exclusion/digital poverty 

Page 70



Page 41 of 54

This is a challenge common to all providers in terms of individuals having access to hardware or 
broadband but also having the skills to use computers as a successful means of communications or 
accessing training.  

Local providers have started to roll out courses to help people with participation however these 
cannot take a broad-brush approach as with our customer groups there is a broad spectrum of 
ability so courses need to be tailored to an individual or group need. With courses delivered online 
due to Covid lockdown, most foundation level courses were unable to run due to learners’ not 
meeting the basic levels of IT.

Community Access to IT is limited although it is available the demand means that not everyone can 
access it at a time when it is needed. 

Opportunity

There is scope for further research into and support for digital exclusion and poverty in 
Gloucestershire and for more organisations to support this work e.g. co-ordination through a Digital 
Skills Partnership, donation of used IT equipment by employers for refurbishment and re-use within 
the community, tailored digital skills courses, subsidised broadband access, etc.

The recent increase in cyber and digital provision at Levels 4 to 7 provides stronger pathways into 
cyber and digital careers. Along with Cynam’s, the colleges’ and universities’ and GFirst LEP’s work to 
establish more extensive and deeper links with local cyber and digital employers, this should result 
in a pipeline of talent for local employers and opportunities for those achieving these qualifications 
to gain local employment opportunities. This in turn will help retain in County some of the young 
people who previously may have sought to study and then work elsewhere. We will need to 
continue to support the work of these local providers and assist them in establishing strong links 
with local cyber and digital employers, as well as helping them to promote the associated careers 
and employment pathways via such things as the Careers Hub and Skills Portal.

We will continue to support emerging initiatives to encourage greater collaboration between 
businesses active in the cyber-tech and digital sector, academia, and nationally important 
institutions such as GCHQ. Collaborative working of this nature will create an environment in which 
innovation within cyber-tech, artificial intelligence and associated cross-sector businesses will 
flourish and grow. We will also to continue look beyond Gloucestershire, to seek collaborations with 
others such as the Universities of Oxford, Bath, South Wales, Cardiff, and Bristol to further develop 
and accelerate the pipeline of talent to satisfy current demand and support projected growth in 
cyber-tech and the digital economy.

Cyber and digital skills development in Gloucestershire schools

Our overall aim is to increase the pipeline of talent entering the local cyber and digital workforce. 
The strong and growing cyber and digital ‘cluster’ in Gloucestershire will provide significant 
employment opportunities for these young people as they leave the education system and help 
meet one of our Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) goals of retaining more young people in the County.

Through our LIS research, we identified that 15.4% of young people surveyed have plans to enter the 
cyber-tech sector showing a good level of interest, with room to grow. 20.4% want to enter the 
creative industries, which is increasingly likely to incorporate advanced digital skills.

The provision and delivery of cyber/digital information and engagement throughout 
Gloucestershire’s secondary schools and colleges is of a high quality in comparison to many other 

Page 71



Page 42 of 54

parts of the UK mainly as a result of the Cyber First programme established in association with the 
National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) and the location and support of GCHQ. This work has been 
further accelerated by Cynam employing an Employer Engagement Enterprise Co-Ordinator who 
works closely with the GFirst LEP’s Careers Hub team and who is co-funded by the Careers & 
Enterprise Company and Capita.

The Cyber First programme which has focussed on secondary schools and colleges, building 
relationships with digital/cyber focussed businesses, aims to get education and business working 
together to better understand the future training needs and requirements in Gloucestershire; 
inspiring and developing our future pipeline of talent. Due to the success of the programme, it will 
be extended and expanded to encourage further school and business engagement throughout the 
South West. CyberFirst Schools / Colleges - NCSC.GOV.UK

Challenge: Uptake of cyber and digital skills programmes in schools
Unfortunately, not all Gloucestershire academies/secondary schools can commit to the Cyber First 
programme and not all are able to deliver Computer Science at GSCE and or A-Level due in many 
cases to the availability of staff and current resources but this does not exclude these schools from 
entering other associated programmes so that all students and learners can participate in some level 
of cyber learning and activity.
 
It is important that everyone, in particular girls and members of the BAME community, has the 
opportunity to learn more about this rapidly developing sector and not to feel ‘left behind’ or 
excluded. To support this aim, there are a range of activities that any school and young person can 
become involved in such as: Cyber Girls Competition; bursaries and apprenticeships; CyberFirst 
Schools/Colleges; CyberFirst resources; CyberSprinters  Schools - NCSC.GOV.UK

In addition to the Cyber First programme GFirst LEP, the Careers & Enterprise Company (CEC) and 
CyNam are committed to collaborating further to work with a wide range of schools, delivering 
targeted presentations, focussed careers events, cyber activities and vocational experiences, to 
enable schools to meet their Gatsby Benchmarks and Baker Clause requirements as well as enabling 
access to further vocational training and employment opportunities with cyber focussed businesses.
 
We want every secondary school, college and university based within the county, to be able to take 
advantage and thrive in this rapidly developing cyber/digital landscape, and to enable all students 
and learners to explore a range of pathways and opportunities to enter this sector or access further 
training. We will continue to encourage active involvement and engagement with as many schools as 
possible, by building on those relationships through the Careers Hub the recruitment and placing of 
specialist Cyber Enterprise advisors to create positive cyber careers and education platform.

Cyber and digital skills development for individuals and employers in further and higher education

GCHQ is the UK’s national cyber security and communications centre and has created a large pool of 
skills and talent that also impacts on local employment in finance, computing and management-
consultancy, microbusiness and high-growth sectors. GCHQ runs engagement initiatives such as 
demonstrating new technologies at the Cheltenham science festival and sponsoring 
entrepreneurship programmes in local schools. In terms of talent engagement and retention, there 
may be further scope for GCHQ to support talent networks for spinouts and engage with local 
education providers as broader activity around cyber and AI data sectors progresses. 

Page 72

https://www.ncsc.gov.uk/cyberfirst/cyberfirst-schools
https://www.ncsc.gov.uk/section/education-skills/schools


Page 43 of 54

Gloucestershire’s Universities, Further Education colleges, Adult Education Service, Library Service 
and independent training providers (ITPs) are increasingly seeking to align the courses they offer 
with the many local opportunities in cyber-tech and further work on this alignment is welcomed. 

Gloucestershire College, University of West of England (UWE) and University of Gloucestershire, in 
part through their involvement in the two Institutes of Technology (IoTs) that operate in the County, 
are working with other universities, businesses and government agencies on the Cheltenham Cyber 
Park (‘Cyber Central’) within the Golden Valley Development area. This is expected to host the 
National Centre for Cyber Security (NCSC’s) National Cyber Innovation Centre, a dedicated facility to 
harness government expertise to develop UK cyber capability and businesses.

The University of Gloucestershire, through both its School of Business and Technology, and its C11 
Cyber Training facility at Berkeley Science and Technology Park, undertakes research and knowledge 
exchange activities that support innovation; deliver innovative solutions, courses, training and 
materials in areas related to cyber-tech and digital, business growth and innovation. Provision 
currently includes Level 7 (MSc in Cyber Security; Technical and Applied Computing; Creative 
Computing; Digital Construction), Level 6 (BSc (Hons) in Computer and Cyber Forensics; Cyber and 
Computer Security; Computing Technologies and Degree Apprenticeship in Digital and Technology 
Solutions).

Gloucestershire College has established cyber incubation units within the College’s Cheltenham 
Campus to create a range of new office space, shared and dedicated laboratories, workshops and co-
working facilities designed specifically for high-tech, cyber-based entrepreneurs and innovators, with 
access to educational facilities. This was part-funded through GFirst LEP and the ‘Getting Building 
Fund’. Gloucestershire College’s cyber and digital provision has been enhanced through 
collaboration with University of West of England (UWE) and currently includes provision at Level 4 
(HNC Computing, Software Developer Higher Apprenticeship, Software Tester Higher 
Apprenticeship), Level 5 (HND Digital Forensics and Cyber Security), and Level 6 (Cyber Security 
Technical Professional Integrated Degree Apprenticeship).

South Gloucestershire and Stroud College’s cyber and digital provision currently includes provision at 
Level 4 (HNC/HND Computing, and the following Higher Apprenticeships: Software Developer; 
Software Tester; Cyber Security Technologist; Network Engineer).

Cirencester College, again in part through its involvement in the Swindon College-led IoT, is in the 
process of building a £4.48m digital skills centre to open in Spring 2022. This centre will provide 
additional learning space modelled on digital industries, rather than traditional classrooms, and will 
support progression into cyber and digital careers. Again, this was part-funded through GFirst LEP 
and the ‘Getting Building Fund’. 

Functional skills

Functional skills are vital skills in maths, English and information and communication technology 
(ICT) that most people need in their daily lives.

There are 23 areas of Gloucestershire in the most deprived 10% nationally for Education, Skills and 
Training Deprivation. These 23 areas account for 36,118 people (5.8% of the county population).

It is important that the drive to deliver higher level skills in the County does not happen at the 
expense of supporting those residents who need to develop and improve their functional skills. 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) Adult Education Service, colleges, independent training 
providers and union learning teams all support this agenda by delivering functional skills 

Page 73



Page 44 of 54

programmes. It is essential that these programmes continue to be funded and delivered in 
Gloucestershire.

Lifetime skills guarantee 

The Lifetime Skills Guarantee is a government-backed initiative which aimed at transforming the 
skills system so that everyone, no matter where they live or what their background, can gain the 
skills they need to progress in work at any stage of their lives. It is funded by approx. £95 million 
from the £2.5 billion National Skills Fund. The guarantee is estimated to be worth about £3,400 per 
person and currently includes approx. 4,000 free level 3 (equivalent to A-Levels) qualifications and 
the skills bootcamps (including the Digital Skills Bootcamps and HGV Driver Bootcamps mentioned 
elsewhere in this strategy). The qualifications offered under the Lifetime Skills Guarantee will be 
regularly reviewed to help meet future skills needs as the economy changes.

Page 74



Page 45 of 54

Section 7: Skills intelligence, co-ordination 
and investment – making things happen
In order to make best use of limited resources in the County, all employment and skills planning, 
support and delivery organisations need to work collaboratively and prioritise key workstreams 
around obtaining and sharing skills intelligence, co-ordinating their work and seeking and securing 
investment in the local employment and skills system.

Skills intelligence: Gather and disseminate accurate and up-to-date Labour Market Information 
(LMI); Audit, strengthen and expand careers support; GFirst Careers Hub; National Careers Service 
provision

Co-Ordination: Dealing with the challenge of a complex and cluttered careers, employment and 
skills landscape

Investment:  Secure and make best use of limited resources

Implementing this skills strategy: The role of the Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Panel (GSAP); the 
employment and skills Action Plan

Skills Intelligence:

Accurate and up-to-date Labour Market Information (LMI) is fundamental in:

 Helping young people and adults make informed choices about jobs and careers
 Helping training providers adjust their provision in order to better meet local employers’ 

needs and maximise their learners’ opportunities to progress into work
 Helping businesses to understand the level of competition for employees and who they are 

competing with for them (as this now works cross-sector with many adults who are in mid-
career, switching or being forced to switch to different sectors).

 Helping employment support providers (e.g. delivering the DWP/Jobcentre Plus work coach 
support, or the Kickstart, JETS and Restart programmes) to better understand the local jobs 
market and therefore better support their customers

 Bids for additional resources to support employment and skills work in the County

This in turn, may help the County as a whole retain more of its young people, especially if the jobs 
and careers that are more visible to them are attractive ones for them.

 GFirst LEP and Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) are well placed to ensure that the work already 
commenced to provide effective LMI to those that need it. This work already underway includes:

 Monthly LMI reports to schools, colleges and alternative provision settings via the Careers 
Hub

 Monthly LMI reports to other training providers via the Skills Portal
 Monthly LMI reports for those seeking work/career change via the Skills Portal
 The licencing of the EMSI Career Coach careers and job postings tool available via the Skills 

Portal
 Use of LMI by employment and training providers with their customers

Page 75



Page 46 of 54

 Use of LMI by Employment & Skills Hub staff with customers

Further work is needed to:

Audit, strengthen and expand Careers Support in Gloucestershire

This includes:

 Research current IAG capacity available across Gloucestershire to identify demand across 
the whole education and skills sector to optimise supply

 Further training, sharing of good practice and resources for school careers leads via the 
Careers Hub

 Ensuring all employment and training providers have adequate careers support capacity, and 
if not, seeking ways to resource and facilitate this

 Recruitment and training of more careers advisers, especially those with the skills needed to 
support adults changing careers at 50+ into other sectors, by Adviza, DWP, employment and 
training providers, GFirst LEP & GCC for the Employment & Skills Hub

GFirst Careers Hub

The GFirst Careers Hub was launched in 2020 with the vision to inspire and prepare young people for 
the world of work by bringing together secondary schools, colleges and alternative provision settings 
from across Gloucestershire to strengthen and develop careers information and experiences by 
creating strong links to industry. 

The Hub works strategically with schools and colleges to link business with education, and provide 
high quality careers education and opportunities for young people.

Through its team of Enterprise Co-Ordinators, the Hub currently supports 49local schools, colleges 
and alternative provision settings, who work together with employers, universities, training 
providers and careers professionals to improve careers education for young people in the region. 

These establishments are supported by Enterprise Advisers, local business professionals who 
support the careers lead in the establishment to raise the aspirations of young people throughout 
Gloucestershire, develop and implement the establishment’s careers strategy, implement the 
Gatsby Benchmarks, and engage with Senior Leadership Teams within educational facilities. They 
use their strategic skills to put opportunities with local employers at the heart of a young person’s 
education.

Challenge: Data and information on school and college careers support for young people

This is held by the Careers & Enterprise Company (CEC) and the GFirst LEP Careers Hub and relies on 
the schools, colleges and alternative provision settings in the Hub completing and submitting termly 
self-assessments against the Gatsby Benchmarks using a tool called Compass/Compass Plus. 

Many schools are currently not submitting termly updates so consequently the Hub team and the 
Careers & Enterprise Company are unable to help them with suitable resources/solutions to their 
careers education offer and their students may therefore be missing out.

Challenge: School prioritisation of and resources for careers support

Page 76



Page 47 of 54

Schools and colleges have limited resources to support their students’ careers education. In some 
cases, this impacts through having a careers lead who has several other responsibilities and limited 
time to plan and manage a careers programme. In other cases there is a disconnect between the 
careers lead and the school senior leadership team. 

How much and how effectively schools prioritise careers support for students varies considerably 
from school to school and between multi-academy trusts (MATs). 

Schools do not have ‘ringfenced’ careers education budgets and many students/ex-students have 
fed back to the Transition workstream that exam success is prioritised over preparation for work and 
effective careers education.

Page 77



Page 48 of 54

The Hub’s strategic plan has been developed in a format consistent with CEC requirements and 
those of the other Careers Hubs in the country. The plan links closely with the wider employment 
and skills priorities in Gloucestershire and the Steering Group ensures that the work of the careers 

Page 78



Page 49 of 54

hub is closely aligned with these priorities and the changing careers support needs of young people 
in the County.

We aim for a careers system that has a measurable impact on young people - now and in the 
future:

1. Amplifying Technical & Vocational Routes

2. A Self-Improving System

Hartpury College and Hartpury University and Forest of Dean District Council’s successful 
Levelling Up bid has a major focus on raising the aspirations of those in the Forest of Dean. The 
careers support centre being developed at the Five Acres site will enable the College, University 
and Council to support several of the Careers Hub action/objective.

We include all young people in careers education - working to remove barriers:

3. Effective Transitions

4. Removing Barriers

We build leaders and institutions who can sustain the mission in the long term:

5. Building leaders for the system

Hartpury College and Hartpury University has recruited a Sustainability Manager who, in addition 
to supporting the organisation also works with Forest of Dean District Council to drive the 
sustainability agenda with young people.

6. Careers Education as part of economic recovery

7. Employers build long term sustainable, mutually beneficial partnerships with schools and 
colleges

National Careers Service provision in Gloucestershire

Adviza currently holds the contract to deliver the National Careers Service (NCS) in Gloucestershire.

Between April and October 2021, the NCS in Gloucestershire delivered by Adviza, supported 1,625 
customers ( including 898 male and 710 female), providing support that included: career planning 
and psychometric testing; CV support; matching customers to local employers and jobs; 
identification and support for confidence or motivational issues; help to improve digital skills; skills 
gap analysis; provision of local Labour Market information (LMI); webinars in specific careers; 
redundancy support.

76.2% of the customers supported by Adviza were unemployed or at risk of redundancy and 15% 
were aged over 50 and unemployed. 21.4% were NEET. Analysis of the most popular jobs sought by 
their customers during this period highlighted the most sought-after job roles were: drivers; storage 
and warehouse managers; sales and retail assistants; receptionists; production and process 

Page 79



Page 50 of 54

engineers; primary and nursery education teaching professionals; labourers; kitchen and catering 
assistants.

Opportunities

Work has already commenced to get National Careers Service (NCS) and DWP/Jobcentre Plus staff 
and customers to utilise the Career Coach tool hosted by GFirst LEP on the Gloucestershire Skills 
Portal https://www.skillsportalglos.com/career-coach/ . This will enable them to access a GFirst LEP 
centrally purchased and free-to-users careers tool that links with live job postings. Greater 
awareness and uptake of this tool will provide further careers information and LMI for individual 
customers and the staff who support them.

A redundancy ‘taskforce’ including Adviza, DWP, GFirst LEP, local authorities, Growth Hub Network 
partner organisations, unions and training providers was established in 2020 and there is an ongoing 
need to ensure there is early visibility and intervention when local employers are considering making 
redundancies.

Greater collaboration and integration of the National Careers Service with the Careers Hub, GFirst 
LEP and the GCC and GFirst LEP Employment & Skills Hub will enable better planning and support for 
those seeking work, moving from one sector to another or retraining.

Work with NCS colleagues to understand and support their plans for continual professional 
development (CPD) for careers advisers, particularly around sector knowledge and County priorities 
e.g. agri-tech, cyber and digital, health & social care.

Skills co-ordination

Challenge: Complex and cluttered careers, employment and skills landscape

As can be seen from the diagram below, the local careers, employment and skills landscape is complex 
and places great demands on local employers, as well as those seeking to co-ordinate the work and 
funding streams involved. This in turn, means that it is challenging for young people and adults seeking 
support and guidance on careers, employment and skills to know where to go or who to ask for 
appropriate information and help. 

The plethora of national employment and skills initiatives that are commissioned/procured by DWP 
and DfE (e.g. Kickstart, Restart, Digital Skills Bootcamps, Local Skills Improvement Plan Trailblazers, 
etc.) need co-ordinating and steering locally in order to avoid duplication/confusion for potential 
customers.

Page 80

https://www.skillsportalglos.com/career-coach/


Page 51 of 54

Various approaches already being taken are intended to ‘declutter’ this complex situation and make 
it easier for young people and adults to engage and find the support they need. These approaches 
include:

 The ‘direction of travel’, collaborative approach and workstreams highlighted in this strategy 
and action plan

 The strategic planning and review work undertaken by Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Panel 
(GSAP) . This work and the membership of the GSAP is explained more fully at 
https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/skills-for-business/ 

 The work of the GCC and GFirst LEP’s Employment & Skills Hub and the GFirst Careers Hub 
brings together strategic and operational ‘join up’ in the County (please see the diagram 
below) and provide focal points for external bids for Employment & Skills projects and 
resources

Page 81

https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/skills-for-business/


Page 52 of 54

Investment – Secure and make best use of limited resources

Challenges: Employment and skills funding

Funding for employment and skills delivery, and particularly the co-ordination of this work and 
‘bridge-building’ between agencies, providers and employers, is very limited so existing resources 
need to be managed and utilised effectively.

Some employment and skills funding streams are coming to an end (e.g. European Social Fund (ESF)) 
whilst others require local match-funding to continue (e.g. Careers Hub requires c £70k p.a. to retain 
the Enterprise Co-Ordinators and their support and delivery of careers programmes in schools and 
alternative provision settings.)

Colleges and independent training providers find it hard to secure sufficient resources to deliver 
‘bread and butter’ training courses that are needed by local employers and residents, but which do 
not come with bidding opportunities for capital or revenue funding.

Opportunities

Further funding opportunities such as Community Renewal Fund (CRF) and UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund (UKSPF) will be managed by the Economy, Environment & Infrastructure (EE&I) team of GCC in 
conjunction with Central Government, whilst others e.g. Strategic Development Fund will be 
managed centrally by DfE.

Page 82



Page 53 of 54

The Employment & Skills Hub set up by GCC and GFirst LEP will help ensure expertise is available to 
bid for and access these funds, either directly, or through shaping/contributing to bids from local 
partner organisations.

Implementing this skills strategy

The role of the Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Panel (GSAP)

The Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Panel (GSAP) provides a link between local economic 
development needs and strategic planning, with the mandate to address issues around skills and 
unemployment/worklessness in the County. It is an advisory body with no legal status but with a 
specific role as part of GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership and the local authority structure within 
Gloucestershire. 

The aim of the Panel is to boost economic growth by creating a more appropriate, relevant and 
highly skilled local workforce, and its role is to shape and influence employment and skills training 
and support to meet the skills needs of employers in Gloucestershire. 

This is done by engaging private and public sector employers, colleges, training providers and the 
voluntary and community sector in the development and delivery of this integrated employment 
and skills strategy, associated action plan and workstreams. 

The GSAP will be responsible for the monitoring and reporting of progress against the skills strategy 
and action plan to the GFirst LEP Board and the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
(GEGJC).

The employment and skills Action Plan

This will be used to co-ordinate and drive the implementation of the strategy. It will require actions, 
resources and collaboration between a wide range of local and national careers, employment and 
skills providers, employers, funders and agencies and will be reviewed quarterly and reported on 
every six months. 

The main workstreams of the action plan are shown in section 2 of this strategy and the detailed 
actions, along with those responsible for delivery, outcomes, resources and success measures are 
shown within the action plan itself. This can be found at ADD LINK

Page 83



Page 54 of 54

Annexes

1. How the strategy was developed

This strategy was developed in the Autumn of 2021 when the economic impacts of Covid and EU Exit 
were combining with a number of underlying, structural issues in certain sectors in the County. The 
strategy is therefore a combination of a continuation of the trajectory for employment and skills that 
we established through the following strategic plans and as a strategic and tactical response to the 
impacts of Covid and EU Exit.

 the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP)
 the European Structural Investment Fund (ESIF) Strategy
 the Local Industrial Strategy
 the Employment & Skills Evidence Base 
 the Local Skills Report  

All the above documents can be accessed at https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/skills-for-business/

The strategy was written by members of staff within GFirst LEP and Gloucestershire County Council, 
with contributions from local businesses and employers, Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Panel (GSAP) 
members, Gloucestershire County Council and District Council members and officers, LEP Board 
members, DWP/Jobcentre Plus, Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and training providers.

2. Sources and links to further information

These are included in the body of the strategy at relevant points. Further employment and skills data 
for Gloucestershire can be found at https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/skills-for-business/

including three other key documents published at the same time as this strategy:

 the Employment & Skills Evidence Base 
 the Local Skills Report  
 Local Skills Report Core Indicators (Annex A)

Page 84

https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/skills-for-business/
https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/skills-for-business/


Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 1 of 16

Action Plan for Employment and Skills in Gloucestershire to implement skills strategy

Workstream 1: Help local businesses to attract, retain and upskill employees through apprenticeships

Ref Actions Responsible When Resources Success measures RAG
1.1 1.1.1 Review and update 

apprenticeship information provided 
via existing channels/skills portal/etc.

1.1.2 Arrange webinars/events to 
promote and Q&A apprenticeships 
and other related early career 
schemes to employers – incl. 
employers using app levy effectively, 
SMEs, apprentices, ASK project

1.1.3 Maintain links with and support 
SW Apprenticeships Ambassador 
Network

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub 
and Careers Hub

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub 
and Careers Hub

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub 
and Careers Hub

Jan 2022

Feb 2022 
and 
March 
2022

Ongoing

 GCC funding 
in place to Sept 
2024 and 
Careers Hub 
funding in place 
to Aug 2022

 Ditto

 Ditto

Increased number of quality 
apprenticeship starts that are linked to 
the wider Skills Strategy, whilst also 
supporting wider recruitment challenges 
for sectors such as care, retail and 
hospitality

Increased number of apprenticeship 
starts

Increased number of local employers 
engaged and registered with South West 
Apprenticeship Ambassador Network 
(SWAAN)

1.2 1.2.1 Prepare list of all levy-paying 
Gloucestershire employers and RAG 
rate re. levy transfer

1.2.2 Promote work done on levy 
transfer by GCC and other good 

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub 
and Careers Hub

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub 
and Careers Hub

Feb 2022

Feb 2022 
onwards

 GCC E & S 
Hub funding in 
place to Sept 
2024

 Ditto

List prepared

Increased Apprenticeship Levy transfer to 
SMEs and increased apprenticeship starts 
with SMEs across all sectors

P
age 85



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 2 of 16

practice to local levy-paying 
employers

1.2.3 Work with local levy-paying 
employers to better understand and 
increase levy transfer facility

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub 
and Careers Hub

March 
2022 
onwards

 Ditto Increased Apprenticeship Levy transfer to 
SMEs and increased newly recruited 
apprenticeship starts with SMEs

1.3 1.3.1 Update advice for employers on 
retaining apprentices to Growth Hub 
website

1.3.2 Brief Growth Hub advisers on 
key messages re. retaining 
apprentices, career roadmaps, 
progression apprentices (Higher level)

1.3.3 Review monthly intelligence 
from Growth Hub advisers and District 
ED leads on any apprentices at risk of 
being laid off and follow-up 
accordingly with employers

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub 
and Growth Hub

LEP & Growth Hub

Growth Hub, District 
Councils

Jan 2022

Jan 2022

Jan 2022 
and 
onwards 
monthly

 GCC E & S 
Hub funding in 
place to Sept 
2024

 GCC E & S 
Hub funding in 
place to Sept 
2024

 GCC E & S 
Hub funding in 
place to Sept 
2024

Increased retention of existing 
apprenticeships by Gloucestershire 
businesses

Increased retention of existing 
apprenticeships by Gloucestershire 
businesses

Increased retention of existing 
apprenticeships by Gloucestershire 
businesses with wider support from the 
Employment & Skills Hub for those at risk 
of redundancy

1.4 1.4.1 Contact all apprenticeship 
providers in the county to confirm 
current provision and numbers + 
future provision

1.4.2 Compare proposed future 
provision from providers with growth 
sectors, LIS ambitions and skills 
strategy

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub, 
GSAP

Jan 2022

Feb 2022

 GCC E & S 
Hub funding in 
place to Sept 
2024 

 GCC E & S 
Hub funding in 
place to Sept 
2024

Report on current and planned provision 
of apprenticeships completed and 
reported to GSAP

Comparison completed and reported on 
to GSAP

P
age 86



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 3 of 16

1.4.3 Work with GSAP, GWP and 
providers to shape future 
apprenticeship and other training 
provision to more closely match sector 
growth and stability ambitions in the 
county

1.4.4 Develop pathways into growth 
sectors and promote these via schools 
careers leads, DWP, Adviza, ASK 
project, skills portal, providers, etc. 

1.4.5 Lobby for and contribute to 
sustainability/’green’ skills being 
incorporated into apprenticeships and 
other training provision in the County

1.4.6 Work with Anchor Institutions to 
ensure apprenticeships and early 
career opportunities are built into 
Social Value contracts

1.4.7 Maximise apprenticeship 
opportunities within infrastructure 
projects in Gloucestershire (e.g. 
retrofit contracts, Fusion project, etc.)

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub, 
GSAP, GWP, Glos 
Federation of Colleges

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub, 
Careers Hub, ASK project

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub, 
GSAP

GCC, LEP, District Councils, 
NHS Trusts, Universities, 
Colleges, E&S Hub

GCC, LEP, District Councils

March to 
June 
2022

June 
2022 to 
Sept 
2022

Jan 2022 
and 
ongoing

Jan 2022 
and 
ongoing

Ongoing

 GCC E & S 
Hub funding in 
place to Sept 
2024

 Funding gap

 GCC E & S 
Hub funding in 
place to Sept 
2024

 GCC E & S 
Hub funding in 
place to Sept 
2024

 Funding gap

Planned apprenticeship types and 
numbers match 

Apprenticeship pathways prepared and 
promoted
Starts for apprenticeships in the 
pathways increase

Evidence of sustainability/’green’ skills 
being delivered in apprenticeships

Number of apprenticeships included in 
contracts and actual starts and 
completions reported on by Anchor 
Institutions to E & S Hub and GSAP

Number of apprenticeships included in 
infrastructure projects and actual starts 
and completions reported on by Anchor 
Institutions to E & S Hub and GSAP

1.5 1.5.1 Continue to lobby DfE and local 
MPs for further flexibilities in use of 
the levy

GCC, LEP, GSAP, LEP 
Business groups

Jan 2022 
and 
ongoing

 No additional 
resources 
needed

Evidence of lobbying activities completed 
and responses.
Evidence of policy changes resulting from 
lobbying.

P
age 87



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 4 of 16

1.5.2 Seek funding for opportunities 
for training providers to deliver 
shorter and more focused training 
programmes that better meet 
employer/locality needs

GCC & LEP via E & S Hub Ongoing  Funding gap Funding secured
Courses/programmes offered and taken 
up

1.6 1.6.1 Investigate the options to 
establish a Gloucestershire 
apprenticeship hub/clearing house as 
part of the E & S Hub

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub May 
2022

 Funding gap Options prepared and considered by 
GSAP
Funding secured for additional support

1.7 1.7.1 Gloucestershire universities and 
UWE (via Gloucestershire College and 
the IoT) to clarify degree 
apprenticeship plans to GSAP

1.7.2 Promote degree apprenticeships 
to employers and potential degree 
apprentices as a way of retaining 
young people within the county. 

1.7.3 Review uptake with GSAP and 
clarify actions to increase uptake

UoG, Hartpury University, 
RAU, UWE + colleges, GSAP

UoG, Hartpury University, 
RAU, UWE + colleges, E & S 
Hub, Careers Hub, ASK 
project

UoG, Hartpury University, 
RAU, UWE + colleges, E & S 
Hub, Careers Hub, ASK 
project, GSAP

Feb 2022

March 
2022 and 
ongoing

March 
2022 and 
ongoing

 Within 
current remit of 
organisations 
involved

 Within 
current remit of 
organisations 
involved

 Funding gap 
depending on 
actions required

Planned degree apprenticeships reported 
to GSAP

Increased uptake of degree 
apprenticeships that are relevant to local 
employer needs

Increased uptake of degree 
apprenticeships

Workstream 2: Help local businesses to attract, retain and upskill employees

Ref Actions Responsible When Resources Success measures RAG
2.1 2.1.1 Maintain referral 

network/taskforce to identify and 
refer on employers seeking 
redundancy help

Growth Hub Network and E 
& S Hub, DWP, Adviza, 
District Councils, Growth 
Hub Network

Ongoing  Within 
current Growth 
Hub funding to 
March 2022

Number of businesses and individuals 
supported

P
age 88



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 5 of 16

2.1.2 Share and promote good 
practice in recruitment, non-pay 
benefits including training of 
employees with local businesses, 
particularly SMEs

Growth Hub Network and E 
& S Hub

April 
2022 
then 
ongoing

 Funding gap Number of businesses supported

2.2 2.2.1 Continue to prepare and publish 
monthly Glos employment reports 
using EMSI tools and monitor usage

2.2.2 Identify and clearly signpost to 
stakeholders the growing sectors and 
organisations recruiting

E & S Hub and Careers Hub 

E&S Hub, LEP Business 
Groups, Careers Hub, DWP, 
Adviza, employment and 
skills providers

Ongoing

Ongoing

 EMSI analyst 
funding in place 
to July 2022
 DfE SAP 
funding in place 
to August 2022

Ditto

Usage of reports by stakeholders

Usage of reports by stakeholders

2.3 2.3.1 Promote existing skills courses, 
programmes and providers via skills 
portal and E & S Hub

2.3.2 Work with stakeholders to co-
ordinate and promote clear 
training/retraining offers/pathways 
using Adult Education Budget (AEB) 

2.3.3 Work with stakeholders to co-
ordinate and promote clear 
training/retraining offers/pathways 
using other suitable resources

LEP, E & S Hub

LEP, DWP, ESFA, GSAP, AEB- 
and ESF-funded providers

GSAP and E & S Hub

Ongoing

Feb 2022 
and 
ongoing

March 
2022 and 
ongoing

 GCC funding 
in place to 
March 2023

 GCC funding 
in place to 
March 2023

 GCC funding 
in place to 
March 2023

Skills portal and E & S Hub usage data

Training and re-training pathways 
promoted
Uptake data on AEB-funded programmes

Funding secured for training/retraining
Places offered for training/retraining 
using funding secured
Uptake and completion data for training 
delivered

P
age 89



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 6 of 16

2.4 2.4.1 Work with stakeholders to 
ensure national initiatives 
complement local provision and meet 
local needs, in particular:

 Kickstart (to March 2022)
 JETS (to September 2022)
 Restart (to July 2024)

E & S Hub DWP, ESFA, GSAP Jan 2022 
and 
ongoing

 Within E & S 
Hub funding to 
Sept 2024

Evidence from meetings with providers
Programme usage data for:

 Kickstart
 JETS
 Restart

2.5 2.5.1 Work with current funders to 
secure extensions to existing local 
support

2.5.2 Scope, prepare and deliver 
suitable sector-based work academies 
(SWAPs) for cyber and digital, 
green/renewables/
retrofitting, agri-tech/other suitable 
sectors

E & S Hub, DWP, Big 
Lottery, ESFA, ESIF 
Committee

E & S Hub, DWP, training 
providers

Jan 2022 
and 
ongoing

Feb 2022 
and 
ongoing

 Within E & S 
Hub funding to 
Sept 2024

 Funding gap

Funding or time for delivery extended

Number and types of SWAPs developed 
and delivered
Numbers of participants

2.6 2.6.1 Support the work of local 
construction and regeneration 
projects to maximize local 
employment, careers and training 
opportunities (e.g. Severn Edge STEP 
Fusion Plant, Cheltenham Golden 
Valley Development, Forum in 
Gloucester, GCH redevelopment of 
Matson & Podsmead, etc.)

2.6.2 Maximise the benefits to local 
residents of employment, careers and 
training opportunities secured 
through Social Value and Section 106, 

E & S Hub, GCC, District 
Councils, CiTB, skills and 
training providers

E & S Hub, GCC, District 
Councils, anchor 
institutions in 
Gloucestershire

Jan 2022 
and 
ongoing

Jan 2022 
and 
ongoing

 Funding gap

 Funding gap

Number of residents employed or 
supported through training per project

Number of residents employed or 
supported through training per 
contract/project

P
age 90



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 7 of 16

the ‘buying power’ of local authorities 
and anchor institutions

2.7 2.7.1 Develop a programme of work 
across the Integrated Care System 
(ICS) to increase the numbers of young 
people at risk of long-term 
unemployment supported through 
Apprenticeships, Traineeships, Work 
Placements and paid work and use 
lessons learned to expand to other 
sectors

2.7.2 Launch Sector-based Supported 
Internships in key Sectors for young 
people with SEND

2.7.3 Establish the Step Forwards 
programme for Care Leavers

2.7. 4 Develop and Promote 
“Inclusivity Works” as resource 
available for all employers to access in 
Gloucestershire including the 
development of Employer Forums  
and Inclusive Employer Awards

2.7. 5 Encourage local and DWP 
Providers to utilise the E & S Hub 
resources including participating in 

E & S Hub, ICS

E & S Hub, Post 16 Strategic 
Lead, Education Providers

E & S Hub. Step Forwards 
Steering Group

E & S Hub, GEM

E & S Hub, Providers etc

Jan 2022 
to Jan 
2024

Jan 2022

Ongoing

Ongoing

January 
2022

ICS Funding to 
Jan 2024

E & S Hub, High 
Needs Funding, 

E & S Hub 
funding from 
Social Care

GEM, E & S Hub 
funding

GEM, E & S Hub 
funding

Number of young people in opportunities
Pathways established with schools and 
other education providers and better 
awareness of ICS Careers
Number of education providers taking 
part
Number of young people taking part
Number of young people securing paid 
employment post provision
Number of employers engaged

Number of young people participating in 
the programme

Number of Care Leavers securing paid, 
sustainable employment

Increase number of employers achieving 
the Inclusive Employer Award
Improved employer engagement – more 
employers utilising the E & S Hub 
resources
Increased opportunities across 
employers/sectors

Resource Bank developed and promoted
Customers receive support through the 
most appropriate programme

P
age 91



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 8 of 16

the Steering Group, Programme 
Interdependencies Group, Open Days, 
and using the Hub space to stabilise 
relationships and enhance knowledge 
of local and national programmes

2.7. 6 Develop a programme of 
support for families (family learning) 
to address issues of workless 
households and generational skill 
gaps/transferrable sills

2.7.7 Work with Shaw Trust to 
develop a self-employment 
programme for young people aged 16 
to 25: “Bright Ideas Gloucestershire” 
(BIG)

2.7. 8 Develop “Inclusive 
Apprenticeships” with providers

E & S Hub, Education, Adult 
Education, Community 
Learning, Education 

Strategic Lead for Inclusive 
Employment, Prospects 
Shaw Trust, E & S Hub

E & S Hub, GCC Ad Ed, 
Community Learning, ICT

January 
2022

April 
2022

April 
2022

ESFA (Ad Ed), 
High Needs 
Budget 
(Education), E & 
S Hub

Bid to NLCF

E & S Hub, ESFA

Increase/maintain referrals into 
programmes
More customers accessing other relevant 
skills provision

Family units taking up the offer of 
support
More people accessing skills provision
More people in moving into employment
Education providers increased knowledge 
of skills/employment pathways for young 
people and their families

Programme rolled out across schools
Young people engaging with programme

Identify at least one provider willing to 
offer IA to EL3 young people

Workstream 3: Help businesses and individuals develop their digital skills

Ref Actions Responsible When Resources Success measures RAG
3.1 3.1.1 Collate information about digital 

and cyber skills offer from 
Gloucestershire training providers and 
promote via Skills Portal and E & S 
Hub

CYNAM, GSAP, GCC & LEP 
via E & S Hub

Jan 2022  CEC & Capita 
funding secured 
to Aug 2022

Courses and training programmes 
promoted
Usage data from skills portal and E & S 
Hub
Uptake data from local training providers 
re. digital and cyber skills 
courses/programmes

P
age 92



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 9 of 16

3.1.2 Collate information about digital 
and cyber skills offer from national 
training providers and promote via 
Skills Portal and E & S Hub

Digital Bootcamps 
providers, E & S Hub Jan 2022

 CEC & Capita 
funding secured 
to Aug 2022

Courses and training programmes 
promoted
Usage data from skills portal and E & S 
Hub
Uptake data from national training 
providers re. digital and cyber skills 
courses/programmes

3.2 3.2.1 Prepare updated contact list for 
all digital and cyber skills providers in 
the county

3.2.2 Contact all providers in the 
county to map current provision and 
numbers + future provision

3.2.3 Work with key stakeholders to 
shape future provision to more closely 
match sector growth ambitions in the 
county incl. the 2 Institutes of 
Technology (IoTs) operating in the 
County

3.2.4 Develop pathways into growth 
sectors and promote these via schools 
careers leads, DWP, Adviza, ASK 
project, skills portal, providers, etc. 

3.2.5 Support the cyber and digital 
skills needs of the Golden Valley 
development (Cheltenham) and The 

CYNAM, GCC & LEP via E & 
S Hub

CYNAM, GCC & LEP via E & 
S Hub, training providers

GSAP, GWP, CYNAM, LEP 
cyber and digital business 
group, providers

GSAP, GWP, CYNAM, LEP 
cyber and digital business 
group, providers, E & S Hub

Cheltenham Borough 
Council, Gloucester City 
Council, Careers Hub, 

Feb 2022

March 
2022

April 
2022 
onwards

April 
2022 
onwards

Feb 2022 
onwards

 CEC & Capita 
funding secured 
to Aug 2022

Ditto

Ditto

Ditto + CEC 
funding of pilot 
project Jan 2022 
to July 2022

 CEC & Capita 
funding secured 
to Aug 2022

List prepared

Providers contacted
Provision plans supplied and collated

Provision amended and evidence for this 
(e.g. course/programme offers adjusted 
by training providers)

Careers pathways and skills needs 
developed
Evidence of promotion of careers 
pathways by schools, DWP, Adviza, etc.
Increased uptake of job roles

Tbc in conjunction with Cheltenham 
Borough Council and Gloucester City 
Council

P
age 93



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 10 of 16

Forum (Gloucester) in collaboration 
with the relevant District Council 
groups and stakeholders.

3.2.6 Implement the skills offer of the 
Cirencester College Digital Skills 
Centre and share good practice of the 
‘digification’ project

CYNAM, LEP cyber and 
digital business group, 
providers, E & S Hub

Cirencester College, LEP, E 
& S Hub, CYNAM

Ongoing  Build Back 
Better/Growth 
Deal funding in 
place for the 
completion of 
the project

Evidence of promotion of skills offer by 
Cirencester College and partner 
organisations
Uptake data of digital skills 
courses/programmes from Cirencester 
College to GSAP
Events/webinars/reports delivered to 
share good practice of ‘digification’ 
project
Evidence of adoption of ‘digification’ of 
curricula by Gloucestershire schools and 
colleges

3.3 Secure funding or community 
resource to reduce digital poverty in 
the county

E & S Hub, GCC ICT team, 
GCC Library Service, LEP, 
Cynam

Ongoing  Funding gap Resource document which is available for 
people and partners needing to access 
resource
Bank of laptops available for customer 
use
Training courses developed which are 
accessible for a broad range of users

Workstream 4: Provide skills and experiences that support individuals to achieve their potential

Ref Actions Responsible When Resources Success measures RAG
4.1 2.3.1 Repeated here as these also 

apply to individuals

P
age 94



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 11 of 16

2.3.1 Promote existing support 
programmes and providers via skills 
portal

2.3.2 Work with stakeholders to co-
ordinate and promote clear 
training/retraining offers/pathways 
using Adult Education Budget (AEB) 

2.3.3 Work with stakeholders to co-
ordinate and promote clear retraining 
offers/pathways using other suitable 
resources

LEP, E & S Hub

LEP, DWP, ESFA, GSAP, AEB- 
and ESF-funded providers

GSAP and E & S Hub

Ongoing

Feb 2022 
and 
ongoing

March 
2022 and 
ongoing

 GCC funding 
in place to 
March 2023

 GCC funding 
in place to 
March 2023

 GCC funding 
in place to 
March 2023

Usage data from skills portal

Programme of AEB-funded training 
published and promoted
Uptake data for AEB-funded training 
from AEB-funded colleges and GCC’s 
Adult Education service

Programme of training published and 
promoted
Uptake data for training from training 
providers

4.2 4.2. 1 Develop and pilot the 
Gloucestershire Employment Charter

4.2.2 Review lessons learned from 
pilot phase and secure resources 
needed for scale up

LEP, E & S Hub (supported 
by training providers)

LEP, E & S Hub, GCC, Child-
Friendly Gloucestershire 
Coalition and potential 
funding partners

Jan 2022 
to March 
2022 

April 
2022 
onwards

 GCC funding 
in place to 
March 2023

 Funding gap

Number of employers signing-up to the 
Employment Charter and reports on 
support offered
Careers Hub Gatsby BMs 5 & 6 scores 
increased
Number of T-level placements, school 
work placements, careers talks, etc. 
increased

Resources secured to provide 
Employment Charter support to all 
Careers Hub schools, colleges and 
alternative provision settings. 
Support requirements of independent 
training providers and employability 
providers clarified

P
age 95



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 12 of 16

4.3 4.3.1 Review and adjust support 
programme/s for young people Not in 
Education, Employment or Training 
(NEET) to minimise those at risk of 
becoming NEET and those already 
NEET

GCC, E & S Hub, Child-
Friendly Gloucestershire 
Coalition, Youth Support 
Team, Prospects, Prospect 
Training Services, ESFA

Feb 2022 
and 
ongoing

? funding needs 
clarifying – 2 
existing 
contracts, one 
via GCC, one via 
ESFA & LEP

Number of NEET young people who are 
supported is increased
Number of young people at risk of 
becoming NEET who are supported is 
increased
Number of NEET young people is 
decreased
Number of young people at risk of 
becoming NEET people is decreased

Workstream 5: Provide skills intelligence, co-ordination and enable investment

Ref Actions Responsible When Resources Success measures RAG
5.1 5.1.1 Prepare monthly labour market 

information (LMI) report and share 
with key stakeholders incl. schools, 
colleges, independent training 
providers, Adviza and via skills portal 
and E & S Hub 

5.1.2 Review and procure commercial 
LMI product/s for use on Skills Portal 
and Careers Hub websites

5.1.3 Review paid-for LMI 
tools/reports already used by schools 
and colleges to investigate whether 
these are worth using more widely 
and whether a ‘hub-wide’ deal can be 
struck with providers.

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub, 
Careers Hub

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub, 
Careers Hub

Careers Hub

Monthly 
from Jan 
2022

Jan 2022

Feb-
March 
2021

 E & S Hub and 
Careers Hub

 Careers & 
Enterprise 
Company (CEC) 
& SAP funding 
to Aug 2022

 Careers & 
Enterprise 
Company (CEC) 
funding to Aug 
2022 for staff
 Funding gap 
for purchase of 

Report produced monthly
Report used by stakeholders 
Careers Hub Gatsby BM 2 score increases

Usage data

Additional LMI tool purchased and used 
by Careers Hub institutions
Careers Hub Gatsby BM 2 score increases

P
age 96



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 13 of 16

5.1.4 Co-ordinate and promote the 
wide range of careers events and jobs 
fairs being organised and promoted by 
multiple organisations in the county

E & S Hub, Careers Hub Ongoing

further LMI 
tools

 GCC funding 
for E & S Hub to 
Sept 2024, CEC 
funding for 
Careers Hub to 
August 2022

Number of events/fairs promoted
Attendance figures from events/fairs
Customer and stakeholder feedback

5.2 5.2.1 Investigate and review capacity 
and effectiveness of existing CIAG 
support for adults via Adviza (NCS), 
DWP and training providers

5.2.2 Investigate capacity and 
effectiveness of existing CIAG support 
for young people via Careers Hub and 
Child-Friendly Gloucestershire 

5.2.3 Seek additional resources and 
further develop CIAG support for 
adults as required through Adviza, 
National Careers Service, ESFA, DWP 
via training, LMI dissemination, etc.

5.2.4 Seek additional resources and 
further develop CIAG support for 
young people as required through 
Careers Hub, schools, alternative 
provision, colleges, Future Me via 
training, LMI dissemination, etc.

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub, 
Adviza and DWP

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub, 
Child-Friendly 
Gloucestershire ‘Transition 
to Work’ workstream

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub, 
Adviza and DWP

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub, 
Child-Friendly 
Gloucestershire ‘Transition 
to Work’ workstream

Feb 2022 
onwards

Jan 2022 

Feb 2022 
onwards

Jan 2022 
onwards

 Funding gap 
for this work

 CEC and LEP 
funding for 
Careers Hub to 
Aug 2022

 Funding gap

 Funding gap – 
Flagged with 
Child-Friendly 
Glos

Assessment of capacity produced with 
recommendations for improvements if 
required

Assessment of capacity produced with 
recommendations for improvements if 
required

Increased numbers of CIAG sessions 
offered
Increased customer satisfaction with 
CIAG support

Increased numbers of CIAG sessions 
offered
Increased student satisfaction with CIAG 
support
Careers Hub Gatsby BM 2 score increases

P
age 97



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 14 of 16

5.2.5 Seek and secure support from 
sector specialists for the development 
of sector-specific careers pathway 
information e.g. LEP business groups, 
Construction Industry Training Board 
(CITB), CYNAM, etc.

5.2.6 Develop sector-specific careers 
pathway information and disseminate. 

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub 
and Careers Hub, Proud to 
Care, CYNAM

LEP & GCC via E & S Hub 
and Careers Hub, Proud to 
Care, CYNAM

March 
2022 
onwards

March 
2022 
onwards

 Health & 
Social Care 
pathways likely 
to be funded by 
Glos ICS

 Funding for 
cyber & digital 
pathways in 
place via CEC 
and Capita to 
Sept 2022

Sector-specific careers pathway 
information prepared in 2 sectors per 
year

Sector-specific careers pathway 
information disseminated to all Careers 
Hub institutions
Careers Hub Gatsby BM 2 score increases

5.3 5.3.1 Provide a digital ‘one front door’ 
employment and skills service for 
Gloucestershire residents via the skills 
portal

5.3.2 Provide a ‘one front door’ 
employment and skills service for 
Gloucestershire residents via the E & S 
Hub and link these with Inward 
Investment opportunities

5.3.3 Provide co-ordinated careers 
support for young people through the 
Careers Hub

5.3.4 Work with Gloucestershire Skills 
Advisory Panel (GSAP) and the DfE SAP 

GCC, LEP, E & S Hub

GCC, LEP, E & S Hub

CEC, Careers Hub, LEP

GCC, LEP, E & S Hub, GSAP, 
DfE SAP Programme team

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

GCC funding to 
March 2023

GCC funding to 
Sept 2024

CEC funding + 
LEP match-
funding to 
August 2022

DfE SAP funding 
to August 2022

Skills portal usage data

E & S Hub usage data

Individual schools, colleges and 
alternative provision settings, Careers 
Hub and CEC reporting against Gatsby 
Benchmarks

GSAP papers and minutes
Local Skills Report updates

P
age 98



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 15 of 16

Programme team to co-ordinate 
employment and skills data analysis 
and provision in the County and 
lobby/feed back to local and national 
policy-makers the wider changes 
needed to support the improvement 
of recruitment and skills in the County

5.3.5 Work with Business West to 
deliver the planned outcomes from 
the Local Skills Improvement Plan 
Trailblazer (specifically for the Health 
& Social Care and Advanced 
manufacturing, Engineering and 
Aerospace sectors)

GCC, LEP, E & S Hub, GSAP, 
Growth Hub, Business West 
LSIP team

Ongoing  Funding gap 
for 
Gloucestershire 
stakeholders 
work on this
 DfE funding 
secured by 
Business West 
for LSIP delivery 
to March 2022

Policies changed as a result of 
lobbying/other interventions

LSIP progress updates from Business 
West
LSIPs prepared for the Health & Social 
Care and Advanced manufacturing, 
Engineering and Aerospace sectors

5.4 5.4.1 Support appropriate bids for and 
facilitate implementation and 
extension of Digital Skills and other 
technical skills Bootcamps in 
Gloucestershire

5.4.2 Lead/support appropriate bids 
for the employment & skills elements 
of UK Shared Prosperity Fund

5.4.3 Facilitate/support bids from local 
training providers that build capacity 
to meet priority local employment and 
skills needs (e.g. Via DfE Strategic 

GCC, LEP, E & S Hub, GSAP, 
CYNAM

GCC, LEP, E & S Hub, GSAP

GCC, LEP, E & S Hub, GSAP

Jan 2022 
onwards

Feb 2022 
onwards

Ongoing

 Funding gap 
for 
Gloucestershire 
stakeholders 
work on this

 GCC funding 
for E & S Hub to 
Sept 2024

 GCC funding 
for E & S Hub to 
Sept 2024

Funding bids completed and submitted
Contracts awarded as a result of bids

Funding bids completed and submitted
Contracts awarded as a result of bids

Funding bids completed and submitted
Contracts awarded as a result of bids

P
age 99



Version 5 – Last updated 11/01/22 Page 16 of 16

Development Fund or Institutes of 
Technology, HGV training, etc.)

5.5 Help training providers prepare to 
provide sustainable/’green’ skills 
needed to help employers transition 
to Net Zero and implement 
sustainable construction through:

5.5.1 Sharing of plans and progress 
achieved by national organisations 
(especially Green Jobs Taskforce and 
Energy Catapult)

5.5.2 Sharing plans and progress for 
local developments in renewables, 
retrofit and sustainable construction

Active Building Centre, 
AccXel Centre, GCC, LEP, E 
& S Hub, GSAP, District 
Councils, training providers

GCC, LEP, E & S Hub

Active Building Centre, 
AccXel Centre, GCC, LEP 
energy and construction & 
infrastructure business 
groups, District Councils

Ongoing

Ongoing

 Funding gap 
for 
Gloucestershire 
stakeholders 
work on this

 ABC funded: 
demonstrator 
projects and 
disseminate 
information, 
 AccXel Build 
Back 
Better/Growth 
Deal funding
 Stroud DC 
phase 1 One 
Public Estate 
funding for 
retrofit planning

Plans and progress reports shared with 
training providers
Plans and progress reports used by 
training providers to develop and offer 
suitable training programmes
Uptake data for training offered

Plans and progress reports shared with 
training providers
Plans and progress reports used by 
training providers to develop and offer 
suitable training programmes
Uptake data for training offered

P
age 100



COVID19 and Economic Intelligence

January 2022

Data and Analysis Team

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 7



The Economy – impact of COVID-19
Claimant Count Job postings

Furlough 30 September 2021

8,500
Employments 

furloughed

3.0% 
of total 

employments

46,792
Job postings 
in Dec 2021

68.7% 
up on Feb 

2020*

Self Employment Income 
Support Scheme 5, 28 Oct 2021

10,100
Claims

30.0% 
of eligible

11,690
People claiming 
unemployment 
related benefits, 

Nov 21

3.0% 
of  16-64 
year olds,

Nov 21

Mobility

Visits to retail 
and recreation 
locations down 

24%
on baseline as at 

07/01/2022

* Please see slide 9 for details of a data quality issue affecting this measure 

P
age 102



The Economy – impact of COVID-19

NEET’S

404
16-18 year 
olds Nov 21

71,109
Working age individuals 

claiming benefits 
May 21

18.5% 
of 16-64 year 

olds

Total benefits

Universal Credit

42,430
People claiming 
Universal Credit, 

Nov 21

11.0% 
of 16-64 year 

olds

Apprenticeships

3,790
Apprenticeship 

starts 
2020/21

Kickstart Gateway, 1st Jan 22

128
Starts

164
advertised vacancies

P
age 103



Claimant Count - Unemployment
11,690

People claiming 
unemployment 
related benefits, 

Nov 21

3.0% 
of  16-64 year olds, Oct 

21

Notes: 
Includes people claiming Jobseeker's 
Allowance plus those who claim Universal 
Credit and are searching for work.

The government's response to COVID‐19 
meant that an increasing number of people 
became eligible for unemployment‐related 
benefit support, although still employed. 

P
age 104



Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme - Furlough

8,500
Employments 
Furloughed as 

at 30/09/21

3% of employments or 
0.3 in 10 as at 30/09/21

Notes: 
Based on all claims received up to the 21st November

Figures are based on where an individual lives

Extensions to the scheme in Nov and May saw some 
differences in eligibility. 

P
age 105



Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme - Furlough

Notes: 
Based on all claims received up to the 21st Novemnber
Figures are based on where an individual lives
Due to small numbers some sectors namely agriculture and public sector are no longer captured in the data

P
age 106



Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme - Furlough

Notes: 

Based on all claims received up to the 21st November

Figures are based on where an individual lives

Age has been calculated as at 1st May

P
age 107



Self Employment Income Support Scheme

10,100
Claims made 
to Wave 5 up 
to 28/10/21

30% of eligible cohort or 
3 in 10 as at 28/10/21

Notes: 
Based on all claims received up to the 7th October

First  scheme closed  13/07/20, covered  80%  of  average 
trading profits for 3 months

Second scheme  opened  17/08/20 covered 70%  of 
average trading profits for 3 months.

Third scheme opened  30/11/20 covered 80% of average 
trading profits, for  3 months.

Fourth scheme opened 22/04/21  some individuals who 
could claim previously unable to do so

Fifth scheme opened  29/07/2021. Two levels of grant 
based on the reduction in turnover experienced

P
age 108



Self Employment Income Support Scheme
Notes: 
Based on all claims received up to the 7th October

First  scheme closed  13/07/20, covered  80%  of  
average trading profits for 3 months

Second scheme  opened  17/08/20 covered 70%  of 
average trading profits for 3 months.

Third scheme opened  30/11/20 covered 80% of 
average trading profits, for  3 months.

Fourth scheme opened 22/04/21  some individuals who 
could claim previously unable to do so

Fifth scheme opened  29/07/2021. Two levels of grant 
based on the reduction in turnover experienced

P
age 109



Unique Active Job Postings

46,792
Unique active job 
postings, Dec 21

Notes: 
Job postings are collected from online 
sources , it doesn’t capture postings that 
are not advertised online, this might result 
in undercounting for some  occupations. 

This data shows any active posting rather 
than newly listed postings. A posting may 
be active for several months so may be 
counted in multiple months

A job postings does not necessarily result in 
a job and some jobs will be created without 
a job postings

Data is subject to change. 

Figures may differ from those presented in a 
previous month due to a data quality issue

A data quality issue has been identified which means previously some jobs outside of the 
county have been included in the Gloucestershire figures. 

This issue does not appear to have affected the overall trends but does mean previously 
circulated numbers may have overestimated the number of job postings in the county. 

We are working to resolve this issue but in the short‐term we have excluded the jobs involved, 
some of which may have correctly been assigned to Gloucestershire. This means this slide may 
now be an underestimate of the true figures but is likely to give a better estimate than those 

shared previously

P
age 110



Unique Active Job Postings

Notes: 
Job postings are collected from online sources , it 
doesn’t capture postings that are not advertised 
online, this might result in undercounting for 
some  occupations. 

This data shows any active posting rather than 
newly listed postings. A posting may be active for 
several months so may be counted in multiple 
months

A job postings does not necessarily result in a job 
and some jobs will be created without a job 
postings

Data is subject to change. Figures may differ from 
those presented in a previous month due to a data 
quality issue

A data quality issue has been identified which means previously some jobs outside of the 
county have been included in the Gloucestershire figures. 

This issue does not appear to have affected the overall trends but does mean previously 
circulated numbers may have overestimated the number of job postings in the county. 

We are working to resolve this issue but in the short‐term we have excluded the jobs involved, 
some of which may have correctly been assigned to Gloucestershire. This means this slide may 
now be an underestimate of the true figures but is likely to give a better estimate than those 

shared previously

P
age 111



Mobility data

Notes: 
Google collects location data shared by users of Android smartphones, and compares the visits to the 
median values on the same day of the week in the five weeks from 3 Jan 2020.

Locations measured include
• Retail & recreation ‐ restaurants, cafés, shopping centres, theme parks, museums, libraries & cinemas
• Grocery & pharmacy ‐ supermarkets, food warehouses, markets, specialty food shops and pharmacies
• Transit stations ‐ public transport hubs, such as underground, bus and train stations.
• Parks ‐ places like national parks, public beaches, marinas, dog parks, plazas and public gardens. 
• Workplaces ‐ places of work. 

Visits to retail 
and recreation 
locations down 

24%
on baseline as at 

07/01/2022

Visits to 
workplaces down

40%
on baseline as at 

07/01/2022

P
age 112



Benefits - Working Age Benefit Claimants

71,109
Working age individuals 

claiming benefits 
May 21

18.5% of 16-64 year 
olds, May 21

Notes: 
This shows the number of individuals 
claiming a DWP benefit in total (i.e. only 
counting each individual claimant once 
regardless of how many different types of 
benefits they claim)

P
age 113



Universal Credit
42,430

People claiming 
Universal Credit, Nov 21 11.0% of 16-64 year 

olds, Sep 21

Notes: 

Includes those who are searching for work and 
those who aren’t. 

• Searching for work = not working/ low earnings
• Working with requirements =  could earn more
• No work requirements = Not expected to work 

due to health or caring responsibility
• Planning for work = Expected to work in the 

future. Lone parent / carer of child aged 1
• Preparing for work = Expected to  prepare for  

work even with limited capability at present 

P
age 114



NEET’s – Not in Education Employment or 
Training

404
16-18 year olds

30th Nov 21

2.4% 
of cohort

30th Nov 21
Notes: 
The NEET group includes young people actively seeking education, employment or 
training as well as those young people who are either not yet ready or who are unable to 
access these opportunities because of their personal circumstances. The figures include 
young people in both these categories.

These figures are not adjusted meaning those people aged 16‐18 whose outcomes are 
not known to Gloucestershire Youth Support Team are not taken into account

P
age 115



Apprenticeships

Notes: 

Data is for academic 
year rather calendar 
year. 

The data includes all 
funded and unfunded 
learners.

Starts are a count of the 
number of starts at any 
point in the years, 
Learners starting more 
than one apprenticeship 
will appear more than 
once.

2,020
Apprenticeship 

participation 
2020/21

3,790
Apprenticeship 

starts 
2020/21

P
age 116



Kickstart
Notes: 

Employers of all 
sizes can apply for  
kickstart funding 
which covers  100% 
of the  wage of the 
participant) for 25 
hours per week for 
a total of 6 months

A Kickstart gateway 
helps an employer 
get a Kickstart 
Scheme grant. 
They may also offer 
employability 
support to the 
young person on 
the scheme. 
Gloucestershire 
County Council is a 
kickstart gateway

The Kickstart Scheme provides funding to create new jobs for 16 
to 24 year olds on Universal Credit who are at risk of long term 
unemployment.

128
Through 

GCC 
gateway 

29
Employed

by GCC

Starts 
1st January 22

Vacancies
1st November 21

164 advertised 

30 live
Through 

GCC gateway 

41 advertised 

3 live 
with GCC

P
age 117



Kickstart
Notes: 

Employers of all 
sizes can apply for  
kickstart funding 
which covers  100% 
of the  wage of the 
participant) for 25 
hours per week for 
a total of 6 months

A Kickstart gateway 
helps an employer 
get a Kickstart 
Scheme grant. 
They may also offer 
employability 
support to the 
young person on 
the scheme. 
Gloucestershire 
County Council is a 
kickstart gateway

This slide is based 
on total starts

The Kickstart Scheme provides funding to create new jobs for 16 to 
24 year olds on Universal Credit who are at risk of long term 
unemployment.

Sectors
Banking & Finance 

(33%)

Charity (20%) 

Creative & 
Media 
(14%) 

Healthcare
(8%)

Sport &
Leisure
(8%)

Teaching & 
Education

(6%)

Districts

P
age 118



Wider context

P
age 119



Population (Mid 2020) 
640,650

Estimated 
population of 

Gloucestershire
60.3% aged16-64 accounting 

for 386,043 people
7.3% aged18-24 accounting 

for 46,563 people

Notes: 

Population projections are trend‐based, which means they are 
based on observed levels mainly over the previous five years. 
They show what the population will be if recent trends 
continue and do not take into account policy changes.

P
age 120



Economic Activity (Jul 2020 - Jun 2021)

80.5% aged16-64 are 
economically active

76.3% aged16-64 are 
employed

19.5% aged16-64 are 
economically inactive

Notes: 

This information comes from a  
survey. In principle, many random 
samples could be drawn and each 
would give different results,. The 
error bars indicate the level of 
confidence for each value. 

The data covers a  12 month 
period rather than a snapshot . 
The latest data covers 3 months 
pre pandemic.

Economically active refers to 
those in employment or looking 
for work.

Employment captures those 
employed and those self 
employed

Economically inactive refers to 
those  who aren’t working or 
actively seeking a job, this could 
be because they are retired, 
looking after a home, unable to 
work for ill health etc. 

P
age 121



Business births and deaths (2020)

Business birth rate of 
9.5%

Business death rate of 
9.1%

61.2% of businesses 
survived for 3 years

Notes: 

An enterprise is essentially a 
business. It is generally 
located at the main  site or 
the head office. 

A business birth is based on 
new business registrations. 
The birth rate is calculated 
using the number of births as 
a proportion of the active 
businesses.

Businesses that have ceased 
to trade are referred to as 
business deaths. The death 
rate is calculated using the 
number of deaths as a 
proportion of the active 
businesses.

A business has survived if, 
having been a birth in year t 
or having survived to year t, it 
is active in terms of 
employment and/or turnover 
in any part of year t+1.

P
age 122



GVA and productivity (2019)

GVA of £18.3 billion GVA per head £28,642 GVA per hour worked 
£33.60

Notes: 

Gross Value Added (GVA) is used to measure the economic value of the goods and services produced in an area.
GVA per head relates economic value to the resident population and can be a useful way of comparing regions of different sizes.
GVA per hour worked divides GVA by the total hours worked by the workforce in the area and is often referred to as productivity.
#Data is subject to revisions 

P
age 123



Sectors – Employment (2020)
Top 3 sectors:

Health: 38,000 in 
employment or 12.4%

Manufacturing: 35,000 
in employment or 11.4%

Retail: 27,000 in 
employment or 8.8%

Notes:

Information is taken from a business 
survey, meaning it captures where 
people work rather than where they live. 
This means people who work in 
Gloucestershire but live outside of the 
county will be included but those who 
live in Gloucestershire but work 
elsewhere will be excluded. 

Figures are based on employment, 
employment includes employees plus the 
number of working owners who receive 
drawings or a share of the profits.

P
age 124



GFirst LEP Update for GEGJC meeting 26th January, 2022
Prepared by Dev Chakraborty (Deputy Chief Executive GFirst LEP)

1) LEP Review – latest news

As of this date, January 14th, 2022, we are still awaiting the publication of the Government’s 
Levelling up White Paper that will include the LEP Review. The current timeline is that this 
will be published before the end of January, so potentially ahead of the Joint Committee 
meeting. If that is the case I will be able to give further detail in my update at the meeting.

2) GFirst LEP Capital Projects update – to December 31st, 2021

Getting Building Fund

GFirst LEP successfully bid for £11.3 million from the Government’s ‘Getting Building Fund’. 
This is funding five ‘shovel ready’ projects outlined below creating 818 new jobs and 
safeguarding a further 43. 
The projects will assist 960 businesses and a further £4.875million will be leveraged from 
both the public and private sector.

 The Minster Exchange with Cheltenham Borough Council – site preparation works 
are now complete and delivery of modular building units has started (see photos 
below). 
Additional ground condition survey work confirmed site conditions to be acceptable 
and no cause for concern. The planning application for the Minster grounds and 
public realm works (ref 21/02019/FUL) was approved at the planning meeting 16th 
December 2021. 
The full opening is looking to be in May/June 2022. 

Page 125

Agenda Item 8



 AccXel Construction Skills Accelerator Centre with KW Bell in Cinderford – The 
grand opening event was held on 9th December 2021. Operational training activities 
and events starting in January 2022. 

Page 126



 The Applied Digital Skills Centre with Cirencester College – construction work is 
progressing well, on track now to complete in February 2022. See photo below for 
latest image. Short term provision for power supplies may be implemented to enable 
full building commissioning Feb/March 2022.

 ‘The Digital Innovation Farm’ with Hartpury University – Groundworks now 
complete. Waiting for delivery of the five modular units with the first three now 
expected on site in February and the final two due on site in March 2022.  

 Cyber Incubator Units at Gloucestershire College, Cheltenham – a ‘soft’ opening 
event was held on 23rd September 2021 and the centre is now fully open and 
operating successfully. The Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities, The Rt Hon Michael Gove MP, visited Gloucestershire College’s 
Cheltenham Campus in mid-October.

Page 127



Local Growth Fund

A summary of the Local Growth Fund outputs reported to date (to end of September 2021);
 

 2,433 direct jobs created
 £79 million of additional public sector and £64 million of private sector leverage to 

date with a further £190 million forecast
 386 new homes completed to date, a further 1,050 forecasted out to March 2025 

and a final forecasted total of 3,115
 23,418m2 of new learning space created
 18,126m2 of new commercial space created

Project updates;

 Gloucester Railway Station – Tenders for civil works were received on 4th January 
2022. GWR currently evaluating/normalising bids with a view to selecting a preferred 
bidder by end of January 2022. Bids were in line with expectations, meaning that 
currently a budget shortfall of c£950k exists for the full scope of works as originally 
proposed. Work is on-going to look at value engineering proposals and also to seek 
additional funding via DfT. Latest forecast of contract award is still April 2022 with a 
suggested completion of late 2022/early 2023. 
On a positive note the first phase of the highway works has now been completed 
and the new access onto Metz Way is now open. 

 Gloucestershire Airport Anson Park – Civil works now underway on site, with 
completion scheduled for April 2022. Site is now being actively marketed for 
development. 

Page 128



 Gloucester SW Bypass – land acquisitions now completed. Demolition contract 
awarded and work will start in January 2022. The scheme now includes elements of 
the new cycle/walking infrastructure to be provided as part of the Gloucester 
Levelling Up award. The total scheme is now a c£11.5 million scheme. Completion 
expected late 2023.

 A40 Innsworth Gateway – construction virtually complete on site, full completion 
now expected in January 2022. Full scheme cost now c£13.5 million representing a 
developer contribution of c£9 million.

 West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Scheme (WCTIS) – Phases 1 & 2 now 
complete and all traffic management provisions have been removed. 
Phases 3 & 4 due to complete in March 2022. A forecast underspend of c£1.7 million 
on the main WCTIS scheme is being re-allocated to support delivery of the Walking 
and Cycling Infrastructure Scheme along the B4063 to the Staverton M5 bridge. 
The work will run in parallel with the main scheme with completion forecast in 
March 2022 for the Staverton Bridge to Arle Court section. 
This section is the first part of the ‘Cycle highway’ that will run from Arle Court to the 
London Road/Black Dog Way junction in Gloucester. 

Full details of the scheme are available here; 
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/major-projects-list/b4063-gloucester-
to-cheltenham-cycle-improvements-scheme/

For further information on any of these projects please go to GFirst LEP’s website; 
http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/

3) Inward Investment project – Invest in Gloucestershire

The Invest in Gloucestershire project has appointed a new Head of Inward Investment. 

GFirst LEP has appointed Phil Clement, a highly experienced international economic 

development professional, to lead the Invest in Gloucestershire project and drive forward  

foreign investment into Gloucestershire as well as support the growth of existing investors.

The Invest in Gloucestershire initiative, an EU-funded project, was set up in 2019 to attract 

new Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) into Gloucestershire. All seven local authority partners 

work closely with the project team to facilitate new enterprise and foster job opportunities 

in the county. Successes include ZeroAvia; a US aerospace firm leading the way in hydrogen 

Page 129

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/major-projects-list/b4063-gloucester-to-cheltenham-cycle-improvements-scheme/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/major-projects-list/b4063-gloucester-to-cheltenham-cycle-improvements-scheme/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/pclementconsulting/
https://www.investingloucestershire.com/
https://www.investingloucestershire.com/news/zeroavialandinglos/


technology; who recently relocated to Gloucestershire at Cotswold Airport, creating nearly 

50 new jobs to date.

Phil has over 25 years’ experience in international economic development, facilitating global 

corporates and smaller businesses to invest in the UK and expand their UK-based 

operations. His career has spanned roles in local and regional Government, covering 

locations such as London, Oxford and Cambridge, as well as consultancy positions in the 

private sector and academia with the likes of the University of Oxford and Cranfield 

University. 

Senior roles have included Head of Investor Development for the South East of England 

Development Agency (SEEDA) and the Director of Invest in Oxfordshire, with his most recent 

role being Head of Investment and Export at the Swindon & Wiltshire Local Enterprise 

Partnership. 

As the project goes from strength to strength, Phil will be a key driver in seeking out new 

investors and promoting the county’s vibrant offering.

2022 brings some significant opportunities for the project. Phil will assist in the promotion 

of Gloucestershire’s cyber sector, including the soon to be launched cyber ‘HPO’ (High 

Potential Opportunity) sponsored by the Department for International Trade. This will 

leverage the commercial teams in British Embassies and Consulates around the world, 

showcasing internationally key cyber assets such as the Golden Valley development 

adjacent to GCHQ and The Forum in Gloucester.

In addition, Phil will oversee the roll-out of a new Advanced Engineering and Manufacturing 

proposition for the county and will be working closely with the two Agri-tech Centres of 

Excellence, Hartpury College & University and Farm 491 at the Royal Agricultural 

University,  promoting their assets globally.

Page 130

https://www.hartpury.ac.uk/
https://farm491.com/


Phil Clement, Head of Inward Investment: “I am delighted to be joining GFirst LEP and 

promoting Gloucestershire’s impressive assets in the fast-growing sectors of cyber/digital, 

agri-tech, advanced engineering & manufacturing and renewable technology. Working with 

partners across Government, industry and academia the Inward Investment Team will 

showcase Gloucestershire’s strengths at sector-specific events at home and abroad 

throughout 2022, assisting in the creation of new businesses and job opportunities across 

the County”.

Dev Chakraborty, Deputy CEO of GFirst LEP, commented that; “we’re really pleased to 

secure the services of such an experienced individual to head up our Inward Investment 

project. Gloucestershire is such a great place to live and work, Phil’s role is to work with 

partners to communicate that message across the globe and I’m confident with his vast 

experience and strong network of contacts, he will do a cracking job”

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021/22

Meeting Date Subject Purpose Key Notes/Actions 

26 January 2022 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Update

Standing item 

GCC Covid-19 Economic 
Dashboard (to include impact of 
end of furlough)

Standing item

GFirst LEP Update Standing item 
Forward Plan including 
emerging SEDF proposals

Standing item 

Employment and Skills Strategy 
(Pete Carr)

Information item

GEGJC Governance 
Arrangements

Decision/discussion item

16 March 2022 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Update

Standing item

GFirst LEP Update Standing item

Business Rates Pool including 
updates on the performance of 
SEDF/bid proposals from the 
SOG

Standing item/information report plus 
possible requests (key decisions) for SEDF 
funding bids (proposed/assessed by the 
SOG)

Possible key 
decisions

Forward Plan including 
emerging SEDF proposals?

Standing item

Concept of a Mass Transit 
System in Gloucestershire (Dr 
David Land – GCC)

Information item

Statement of Common Ground 
Action Plan  (Tracey Crews)

Information item

Green Skills and Jobs (GEGSC 
to consider)

Discussion item

P
age 133

A
genda Item

 9



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021/22

Broadband in the County Information item 
Future Items

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
(Autumn 2021)

Information item

Gloucestershire Growth Hub 
Network

Information item/Activity report

Business Rates Pooling in 
Gloucestershire for future years

Information item/ possible decision (Andrew 
Cummings)

Health inequality within 
Gloucestershire and its impact 
on economic growth.

Information item

P
age 134


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	GEGJC Action Sheet - 17 November 2021

	5 GEGJC Governance Arrangements
	6 Employment and Skills
	Summary of Glos Skills Strategy for GEGJC Jan 2022
	Gloucestershire Skills Strategy 2021 pre design draft for GEGJC Jan 2022
	Action Plan for Employment and Skills Strategy v5 Jan 2022

	7 GCC Covid-19 Economic Dashboard
	8 GFirst LEP Update
	9 Forward (Work) Plan

